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City of Stockbridge

4640 North Henry Boulevard « Stockbridge, Georgia 30281
Phone: (770) 389-7900 « Fax: (770) 389-7912

June 29, 2011

To the Honorable Mayor, Distinguished Members of City Council
And the Citizens of the City of Stockbridge:

Ladies and Gentlemen:

State law requires that all general-purpose local governments publish within six months of the
close of each fiscal year a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and audited in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards by a firm of licensed certified public accountants. Pursuant to that
requirement, we hereby issue the comprehensive annual financial report of the City of
Stockbridge, Georgia for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of the City of
Stockbridge, Georgia. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the
completeness and reliability of all of the information presented in this report. To provide a
reasonable basis for making these representations, management of the City of Stockbridge has
established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the
government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for
the preparation of the City of Stockbridge’s financial statements in conformity with GAAP.
Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City of Stockbridge’s
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather
than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As
management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is
complete and reliable in all material respects.

The City of Stockbridge’s financial statements have been audited by James L.Whitaker, P.C., a
firm of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City of Stockbridge for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2010, are free of material misstatement. The independent audit involved
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent auditor



concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified
opinion that the City of Stockbridge’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31,
2010, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is
presented as the first component of the financial section of this report.

Government Auditing Standards require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair
presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government’s internal controls
and compliance with legal requirements. This report is available under a separate cover.

Profile of the Government

The City of Stockbridge was founded in 1829 and was incorporated as a city in 1920.
Stockbridge is located in the northern part of Henry County, Georgia and is approximately
eighteen miles from the state capital of Atlanta. The City is a municipal corporation created
under the laws of the State of Georgia and has its corporate name as “City of Stockbridge,
Georgia.” The affairs of the City are conducted by a Mayor and a five-member city council. The
Mayor and City Council members are elected at large. This elected body is responsible for the
active coordination of community resources, to anticipate problems and meet community needs.

The City Manager, who is appointed by the Mayor and City Council, oversees the day-to-day
operations of the City and ensures the smooth and efficient delivery of city services. All
activities and functions of the City are administered by the City Manager and City Clerk and are
under the jurisdiction of the Mayor and City Council, as set forth in State and local law.

The City provides a full range of services to approximately 26,000 residents. These services are
provided in whole either by the City or through contractual agreements with Henry County. They
include public safety (police and fire), community development, highways and streets, water,
sewer, sanitation, public improvements, planning and zoning, and general administrative services.
The City is one of four incorporated municipalities within Henry County and is not included in
Henry County’s reporting entity. The City of Stockbridge Downtown Development Authority
has not met the criteria, established under Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) —
Statement 14, for inclusion in the reporting entity, and accordingly, is excluded from this report.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Stockbridge’s financial planning and
control. All funds and departments of the City are required to submit requests for appropriations
to the City Manager in August of each year. The City Manager uses these requests as the starting
point for developing a proposed budget. The City Manager then presents this proposed budget to
the Council for review in October. The Council is required to hold public hearings on the
proposed budget and to adopt a final budget no later than December 31, the close of the City of
Stockbridge’s fiscal year. The appropriated budget is prepared by fund and department.
Department supervisors may make transfers of appropriations within a department. Transfers of
appropriations between departments require the special approval of the governing council.
Budget to actual comparisons are provided in this report for the general fund. These comparisons
are presented beginning on page 19 of the basic financial statements.

On January 1, 1995, the City of Stockbridge received its status as a Certified City by the State of
Georgia Department of Community Affairs.
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Factors Affecting Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is
considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City of
Stockbridge operates.

Long-Term Financial Planning

The Mayor and Council of the City of Stockbridge are very diligent with budgeting and planning.
With the Joint Comprehensive Development Plan, the Short Term Work program as well as other
programs, we share in the planning for growth and development of infrastructure with our county.
These plans also address population, economic development, natural histories and cultural
resources as well as transportation and community facilities throughout the city and county.

In 1976, the Mayor and Council decided to disband the city’s police and fire departments and turn
these functions of protecting our citizens over to the county. They felt at that time, and still do,
that our citizens pay county taxes for these services and it would be double taxation to ask them
to pay city taxes again for the same services. The city does have its own court but outsources
probation services. The city does provide water, sewer and sanitation services as well as code
enforcement. Streetlights are also provided in every neighborhood for the safety of our citizens.
The City of Stockbridge has not had a property tax since 1996.

In 2009, an Ordinance was passed by the City Council to allow the City’s sanitation customers to
be billed on the Henry County Property Tax bills. This resulted in $931,786 for 2009 and
$1,006,416 for 2010 of sanitation receipts from the Tax Commission being reported as deferred
revenue. The City also bills for stormwater fees on these tax bills.

In prior years the City used bonds issued by the Urban Redevelopment Agency to finance the
City’s new administrative facilities and for the creation of a Town Center. Bonds outstanding as
of December 31, 2010 amounted to $16,235,000. The remaining bonds are at set rates from
4.45% to 4.865% and will be paid over a twenty-year period. During 2010 the City received
financing from the Georgia Environmental Facilities Agency in the form of a grant and loan to
improve the City’s water distribution system. Total grant proceeds during 2010 amounted to
$1.174,600. The loan was for $1,761,900 and draw downs as of December 31, 2010 amounted to
$1,507,350.

Local Economy

Stockbridge is intersected by two interstate expressways, 1-75 and 1-675. These heavily traveled
interstates bring tourists into our City. The tourist boosts the sales tax revenue as well as the
Hotel/Motel tax revenue. The City has a Hotel/Motel tax rate of 5%. We currently have four
motels in the city limits of Stockbridge for which we receive this tax revenue. This revenue has
decreased due to the recession.
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As there is very little industry within the city limits of Stockbridge, we are considered a bedroom
community to the City of Atlanta. Our citizen’s employment, as well as our local economy,
depends largely on what happens in and around Atlanta. The State of Georgia has been one of
the hardest hit states with regard to unemployment with the year 2010 ending with over 10.4%
unemployment rate. This has also affected the City of Stockbridge and the surrounding area.
There continues to be a high rate of foreclosures within the City. In 2008, Stockbridge had more
foreclosures in the 30281 zip code (which also reaches outside the city limits) than any other zip
code in the county. Property values have decreased. Fewer real estate sales lowers the City’s Real
Estate Transfer Tax revenue. There were only 8 new single-family home building permits issued
in the City in 2010 as compared to 37 in 2009 and 83 in 2008.

The downturn in the economy, which began in 2007, may be leveling out. While the
unemployment rate for Henry County increased to 10.4% in December 2010, 2010 local option
sales tax revenue increased 13.4% over 2009 for a total of $3,130,180.

Major Initiatives

A new Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax III was passed by the citizens in November of
2007. We began receiving these funds in June of 2008. The prediction was for the City of
Stockbridge to receive $32,857,500 from this revenue source. This amount has been greatly
reduced due to the economy. The plans are to use these funds for Capital Projects such as roads,
bridges, sidewalks and transportation facilities as well as public safety facilities and equipment,
public works facilities and equipment, and construction and renovation of municipal buildings.
Most of these projects have been cut back but we are going forward with the renovation of
municipal buildings including the Community Center, the Police Station and Court. There was a
$13-$15 million dollar sewer plant expansion planned that has been postponed and scaled down
at this point.

The City purchases the majority of its water from the Henry County Water and Sewer Authority.
The City does have three wells online in order to supplement our water consumption. The
Environmental Protection Division of the State of Georgia mandated that we have a three-tier
billing system and that the water and sewer rates generate enough revenue to cover the expenses
and be able to establish funds for future infrastructure needs. With these mandates, we have
increased our rates; however, we have not yet covered all of our expenses. We are hoping to
increase rates gradually so we will be able to exceed the cost of services and set aside funds for
future infrastructure needs.
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There are currently three projects at different stages for which we have one Livable Center
Initiative Grant and two Transportation Enhancement Grants.

o LCI-East Atlanta/Love Street to Highway 42 — Sidewalks and Streetscapes — Cost
approximately $500,000. This project was under construction as of December 31, 2010.

o TE-Walking Trail — From Flippen Road, Tye Street to Memorial Park on Jennings Way —
Cost approximately $900,000. This project was under construction as of December 31, 2010.

e TE-Old downtown streetscape and lighting on Berry Street — Cost approximately$1,000,000.
This project is in the planning stages as of December 31, 2010.

The City is also in the process of implementing a water main improvement project to loop water
lines, upgrade to a larger diameter pipe in twelve locations and remove asbestos/cement water
mains to replace them with PVC or ductile pipe all at the approximate cost of $2,900,000. The
project is being financed with a loan/grant program from the Georgia Environmental Facilities
Authority and the use of funds from the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act.

The Future

Although the Town Center has been put on hold, it is hoped that eventually it will be a vital part
of the City’s future. It will take several years for this to develop, especially with the decline in
the economy in the past few years, but the energy from this project is predicted to spread
throughout downtown Stockbridge. The Mayor and Council are working hard to build a quality
development for our citizens. With the predictions of higher fuel costs, more and more people are
choosing communities where they can live, work, go to school and worship within walking
distance. Town Centers are becoming more and more popular. These communities will house
young and old alike, as well as all income groups. It is predicted that our growth will come with
high-rise units rather than sprawling subdivisions.

The Atlanta Regional Commission predicted that in 2007 there were 8,459 homes in the City of
Stockbridge, by 2010 there will be 11,765, and by 2030, they are predicting 28,385 homes in our
city.  The population was predicted to grow from approximately 22,000 in 2009 to 28,307 in
2010 and to 69,896 in the year 2030. These predictions were made prior to the downturn in the
economy and the growth has not yet come as predicted.

Our Geographic Information Systems Department worked with the United States Census Bureau
to ensure an accurate count of our citizens in 2010. Now more than ever we need an accurate
count.

With the slow down in the economy, there will be many challenges for the City. The Mayor and
Council are working to have quality growth within the City and at the same time keep
expenditures in line with revenues. They feel through use of progressive management practices
within our city government, we will be able to continue to avoid property taxes.



Debt Administration

As January 1, Urban Redevelopment Agency revenue bonds in the amount of $16,690,000 were
outstanding. Monies from these bond issues are being used to help finance the City’s proposed
town center which included the construction of a new City Hall as well as preliminary cost to
plan for the Town Center development. Under current state statutes, the City’s general obligation
bonded debt issuances are subject to a legal limitation based on 10 percent of total assessed value
of real and personal property. As of December 31, 2010, the City did not have any general
obligation bonded debt outstanding. The City’s legal limit was $77,944,550 and related debt per
capita was zero.

During 2010 the City received financing from the Georgia Environmental Facilities Agency in
the form of a grant and loan to improve the City’s water distribution system. Total grant proceeds
during 2010 amounted to $1,174,600. The loan was for $1,761,900 and draw downs as of
December 31, 2010 amounted to $1,507,350.

Benefit Plans —

Pension Plan

The City contributes to the Georgia Municipal Employee’s Benefit System, an agent
multiple/employer public employee retirement system administered by the Georgia Municipal
Association. All full time City employees and all City officials are eligible to participate in the
system. The employee becomes fully vested after ten years of service. The City employee’s
participation is non-contributory; however, the City is subject to the minimum funding standards
for the Public Retirement System Standard law. The policy set by the City for funding the plan
expenses exceeds the minimum requirements of this law. The Georgia Municipal Employee’s
Benefit System is actuarially sound with all indications that this will continue.

OPEB Plan

For the year ended December 31, 2010, the City continued to follow Governmental Accounting
Standards Board Statements Nos. 43 and 45, regarding Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions”, for certain postemployment life insurance benefits provided by the City. The City
finances the plan on a pay-as-you-go basis and at the beginning of the year had five retired
employees that were eligible to participate. The City did have an Actuarial Valuation and Review
for the plan during 2009 which revealed that the actuarial accrued liability as of January 1, 2009
was $48,744. The annual OPEB cost for the year as calculated during the January 1, 2009
actuarial report amounted to $5,140. The City did elect to amortize the Unfunded Actuarial
Accrued Liability over a 25 year period as a level dollar amount. The actuarial valuation and
review is required every three years and therefore no new information is available for 2010.

Management Discussion and Analysis

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be read in
conjunction with it. The City of Stockbridge’s MD&A can be found immediately following the
report of the independent auditors.
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Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded
a Certificate of Achievement For Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Stockbridge for
its comprehensive annual financial report for the year ended December 31, 2009. This was the
12th consecutive year that the government has received this prestigious award. In order to be
awarded a Certificate of Achievement the City must publish an easily readable and efficiently
organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

The Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement
Program’s requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for
another certificate.

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and dedicated
services of the entire staff of the finance and administration departments. We would like to
express our appreciation to all members of the department who assisted and contributed to the
preparation of this report. We also would like to thank Nancy Brown who retired December 31,
2010 for her outstanding service over the past twenty years. Through her efforts, we were
awarded the Excellence in Financial Reporting eleven years in a row.

We also thank the Mayor and members of City Council for their interest and support in planning
and conducting the financial operations of the City in a responsible and progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted,

D ooty

Annette Anderson, Treasurer
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Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

City of Stockbridge
Georgia

For its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended
December 31, 2009

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Officers
Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement
systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest
standards in government accounting
and financial reporting.

==

President

Gty # G

Executive Director
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. . phone: 678-205-4438 - .
The American Institute of . Georgia Society of
Certified Public Accountants Fax: 678-205-4449 Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council
City of Stockbridge, Georgia

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, and each major fund of the City of Stockbridge, Georgia (the City) as of and for the year ended December
31, 2010, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on
these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each major fund of the City of
Stockbridge, Georgia, as of December 31, 2010 and the respective changes in financial position and, where
applicable, cash flows, thereof, and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund and Hotel / Motel
Tax Fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated June 28, 2011 on our
consideration of City of Stockbridge’s internal controls over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulation, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report
is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be
considered in assessing the results of our audit.



The Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 12 and the Historical Pension Information on
page 50 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted
principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required
supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Stockbridge, Georgia’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, individual fund
financial statements and budgetary comparison schedules, and statistical tables are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The individual funds financial
statements and budgetary comparison schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and statistical tables have not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on
them.

%ZW% wlditoker, P C

Snellville, Georgia
June 28, 2011



CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the City of Stockbridge, we offer readers of the City of Stockbridge’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Stockbridge for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2010. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with
additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal.

Financial Highlights

e The assets of the City of Stockbridge exceeded its liabilities at December 31, 2010 by $51,248,704.
Of this amount unrestricted net assets of $10,521,087 may be used to meet the government’s
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

e The total net assets increased by $3,897,339. Of this amount, an increase of $1,743,238 was
associated with governmental activities and an increase of $2,154,101 was associated with business-
type activities.

e As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Stockbridge’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $12,195,950, a decrease of $1,596,320 in comparison with the
prior year. Of this amount $8,732,885 is unreserved and available for spending and $3,463,065 is
reserved for capital projects and other specific future uses.

e At the end of the current year, unreserved fund balance for the General Fund was $8,318,250 or
160.3 percent of total General Fund expenditures.

e The City of Stockbridge’s total debt obligations (including accrued compensated absences)
increased by $1,003,529. This increase is primarily due to the City obtaining a loan in the amount of
$1,507,350 from the Georgia Environment Facilities Authority to improve the City’s water
distribution system. The City did make principal payments on the Urban Redevelopment Agency’s
bond obligations of $455,000.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Stockbridge’s basic financial
statements. The City’s basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial
statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide
readers with a broad overview of the City of Stockbridge’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net assets changed during the most
recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for
some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all



or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental
activities of the City of Stockbridge include general government, public safety and courts, highways and streets,
parks and recreation, tourism and promotion, and code enforcement. The business-type activities of the City are
water and sewer, solid waste management, conference center and stormwater management.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of
the City of Stockbridge can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information
may be useful in evaluating a government’s near term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand
the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet
and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison.

The City maintains seven major governmental funds. The City’s major governmental funds are the General Fund,
Hotel/Motel Tax Fund, SPLOST II and SPLOST 11l Capital Project Funds, State and Federal Grants Fund, Urban
Redevelopment Fund, and the Perpetual Care Permanent Fund. Information is presented separately in the
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in
fund balances for all major funds.

The City of Stockbridge adopts an annual budget for all of its governmental funds. Budgetary comparison
statements have been provided for the General Fund and the Hotel/Motel Tax Fund to demonstrate compliance with
the FY 10 budget. A project length budget has been adopted for each Capital Projects Fund.

Proprietary funds. Enterprise funds (a component of proprietary funds) are used to report the same functions
presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to
account for its Water and Sewer Fund, Solid Waste Management Fund, Conference Center Fund, Community
Center Fund and its Stormwater Management Fund. All five of the City’s enterprise funds are considered by the City
to be major funds.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as government-wide financial statements only in more detail.
The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for each of the City’s major funds.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statement and accompanying notes, this report also presents
certain other supplementary information which consists of individual fund financial statements with prior year
comparisons.



Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. At
December 31, 2010, the City’s assets exceeded liabilities by $51,248,704. The City’s net assets reflects its
investment in capital assets (72.1 percent), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding.
Capital assets are used to provide services to citizens and they are not available for future spending. Although the
investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this
debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities. Of the total net assets, $3,787,695 (7.4 percent) is restricted for capital projects and other specified
activities and $10,521,087 (20.5 percent) is unrestricted.

The following is a comparison statement of the City of Stockbridge’s net assets as of December 31, 2010:

City of Stockbridge's Net Assets

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Current and other assets $13,522,003  $ 14,670,075 $ 3,506,823 $ 2437367 $17,028,826 $17,107,442
Capital assets 35,854,619 33,199,680 18,827,653 15,995,790 54,682,272 49,195,470
Total assets 49,376,622 47,869,755 22,334,476 18,433,157 71,711,098 66,302,912
Current liabilities 1,104,772 835,412 1,465,191 1,227,233 2,569,963 2,062,645
Long-term liabilities 16,296,930 16,802,661 1,595,501 86,241 17,892,431 16,888,902
Total liabilities 17,401,702 17,638,073 3,060,692 1,313,474  20.462,394 18,951,547
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 19,619,619 17,811,919 17,320,303 15,995,790 36,939,922 33,807,709
Restricted 3,375,196 4,039,095 412,499 - 3,787,695 4,039,095
Unrestricted 8,980,105 8,380,668 1,540,982 1,123,893 10,521,087 9,504,561
Total net assets $31,974,920 $30,231,682 $19.273,784 § 17,119,683 $51,248,704  $47,351,365

A portion of the net assets (7.4 percent) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they
may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets ($10,521,087) may be used to meet the government’s
ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.



Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City of Stockbridge’s net assets by $1,743,238,.The
increase in net assets from Governmental Activities is primarily due to capital grants received from the Department
of Transportation for trail and streetscape improvements inside the City. Other key elements of this increase are as

follows:
City of Stockbridge's Change in Net Assets
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
Revenues:
Program Revenues -
Charges for services $ 1,126,757 $§ 978,537 $ 4,599,066 $ 4216,745 $ 5,725,823 $ 5,195,282
Operating grants
and contributions - - - - - -
Capital grants
and contributions 1,985,246 1,010,556 1,178,613 51,092 3,163,859 1,061,648
General Revenues -
Sales taxes 3,130,180 2,759,279 - - 3,130,180 2,759,279
Other taxes 3,071,268 3,020,320 - - 3,071,268 3,020,320
Interest 155,468 360,899 7,378 18,790 162,846 379,689
Gain on disposal of
capital assets - - - - - -
Other 15,399 16,865 - - 15,399 16,865
Total Revenues 9,484,318 8,146,456 5,785,057 4,286,627 15,269,375 12,433,083
Expenses:
General government 2,515,610 2,400,464 - - 2,515,610 2,400,464
Public safety and courts 1,080,261 677,665 - - 1,080,261 677,665
Parks and recreation 228,944 245,170 - - 228,944 245,170
Highways and streets 1,971,459 2,083,352 - - 1,971,459 2,083,352
Urban redevelopment 58,662 153,129 - - 58,662 153,129
Code enforcement 74,782 68,283 - - 74,782 68,283
Interest on long-term debt 749,810 855,074 - - 749,810 855,074
Water - - 1,227,051 1,332,501 1,227,051 1,332,501
Sewer - - 1,437,926 1,370,293 1,437,926 1,370,293
Solid waste - - 966,489 1,088,706 966,489 1,088,706
Conference center - - 518,217 549,345 518,217 549,345
Community center - - 70,853 - 70,853 -
Stormwater management - - 471,972 474,327 471,972 474,327
Total Expenses 6,679,528 6,483,137 4,692,508 4,815,172 11,372,036 11,298,309
Increase (decrease) in net assets
before transfers 2,804,790 1,663,319 1,092,549 (528,545) 3,897,339 1,134,774
Transfers (1,061,552)  (3,704,661) 1,061,552 3,704,661 - -
Increase (decrease) in net assets 1,743,238 (2,041,342) 2,154,101 3,176,116 3,897,339 1,134,774
Net assets - beginning of year 30,231,682 32,273,024 17,119,683 13,943,567 47,351,365 46,216,591
Net assets - end of year $31,974,920 $30,231,682 $19,.273,784 $ 17,119,683  $51,248,704  $47,351,365




Revenues from Local Option Sales Tax increased by $370,901 or 13.4% from 2009. This increase is due to the
overall economy. Similarly, the Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax (included in capital grants and
contributions) increased by $550,268.

Investment earnings decreased by $205,431 from 2009 to 2010. This is due to the significant decrease in interest
rates and the decrease in the amount of invested funds available in the revenue bond accounts related to the Urban
Redevelopment Fund.

Capital grants and contributions increased by $974,690 from 2009. This increase is due to the various grants
received from the Georgia Department of Transportation for the improvement to the City’s streetscapes and
walking trails.

Governmental Activities expenses increased by $196,3910r 3% from 2009. The main reason for the increase is due
to the negotiations under house bill 489 relating to police service within the City where the City agreed to pay
Henry County $300,000 for such specified services.
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Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City’s net assets by $2,154,101. The increase is basically
the result of the grant received from GEFA for the improvements to the City water system in the amount of $1,174,600. In
addition, the City’s Governmental Activities transferred a newly constructed building costing $739,617 to the newly
created Community Center Fund.
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Stockbridge uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance related
legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The purpose of the City’s governmental fund financial statements is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s
financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At December 31, 2010 the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $12,195,950, a decrease
of $1,596,320 in comparison to the prior year. Of this amount, $8,732,885 (71.6 percent) is unreserved fund balance,
which is available for spending at the government’s discretion. The remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that it
is not available for new spending because it has already been committed 1) to pay for capital items most of which is funded
by the proceeds of the Special Purpose Local Option Sales Tax and Urban Redevelopment Program ($3,364,125); 2) for
Perpetual Care of the City’s cemetery ($11,071); and 3) reserved for prepaid expenses which are not available for current
government’s spending discretion ($87,869). The decrease in fund balances of $1,596,320 is the result of the Urban
Redevelopment Fund recognizing the majority of its revenues and bond issues in previous years and expending the monies
in the current year along with the General Fund transferring approximately $1,628,477 to other funds to help finance
operations.

The General Fund is the City’s chief operating fund. At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance of the
General Fund was $8,318,250 while the total fund balance totaled $8,406,119. As a measure of the General Gund’s
liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures.
Unreserved fund balance represents 160.3 percent of the total general fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents
162.0 percent of that same amount.

During the current fiscal year, the fund balance of the City’s General Fund increased by $512,774. Key factors in the
increase are due to: 1) total revenues increase $355,850 of which local option sales taxes increase $370,901 or 13.4%; 2)
total expenditures increased $583,218 of which police expenditures increased $265,198 due to the additional amounts paid
to Henry County for police services as a result of house bill 489 negotiations; 3) transfers to other funds decreased by
$7,192,826 since the General Fund transferred significant monies to other funds during 2009 to pay-off debt; and 3) the
overall economic condition seemed to have etched up for the year..

The City of Stockbridge received $1,560,824 in Special Purpose Local Option Sales Taxes in 2010 compared to $1,010,556
in 2009. This is up by 54.5% which is due primarily due to the method the SPLOST proceeds are used by the County to
pay debt service on bonds issued to finance approved SPLOST projects. The City received the first funds from this source
in June 2009. Henry County issued bonds in order to begin projects approved by the voters in November 2007. The City
received $6,626,500 from the County’s bond issue in order to begin special projects rather than wait for the revenue to
come in over the six year period of the referendum. The debt service on the bonds has to be paid each year before the City
or County receives any proceeds to be used on projects. The projects approved by the voters in the SPLOST referendum
include public safety facilities and equipment, public works facilities and equipment, construction and renovation of
municipal buildings, acquisition of property for public use and the City’s share of roads, bridges, sidewalks and
transportation facilities.

The Capital Projects Fund includes grants from state and federal agencies. The City has received two Transportation
Enhancement grants: one in the amount of $595,000 with matching funds from the City of $148,750 for the design and
development of a biking trail to connect our parks and the other in the amount of $270,560 for streetscapes for East Atlanta.
The City has an Old Downtown streetscape project for which the design phase began in 2010.
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As of December 31, 2010, the Urban Redevelopment Agency of the City of Stockbridge had long-term liabilities from
Revenue Bonds in the amount of $16,235,000. The majority of these funds have been used for purchasing property and
building and furnishing a new city hall facility which was begun in July 2007 and was completed the middle of 2009. The
cost of the building is approximately $11,964,000.

The City created the Hotel/Motel Tax Fund during fiscal year 2006 in order to meet the reporting requirements of state law.
The Fund is used to account for proceeds from the City’s Hotel/Motel tax and the required 40% payment to the Henry
County Chamber of Commerce. Unreserved balance at December 31, 2010 for this fund amounted to $987.

The City of Stockbridge has a Perpetual Care Permanent Fund which is for the upkeep of the City cemetery. A donation of
$5,000 was made with only the investment earnings to be used for cemetery upkeep purposes. Currently, the City has not
used any of these proceeds. The current fund balance as of December 31, 2010 amounted to $11,071

Proprietary funds. The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
financial statements but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the proprietary funds at the end of the year were $1,540,982 of which the Water and Sewer Fund
had $1,002,789 (65.1%) and the Stormwater Management Fund had $564,945 (36.7%). Other factors concerning the
finances of proprietary funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the City’s business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The General Fund’s original budget of $8,453,081 (expenditures plus transfers) was amended in December 2010 which
decreased the budget by $38,529 to $8,414,552. The General Fund’s original budget was amended since the City deferred
various construction projects until 2011.

The significant variance in the General Fund tax revenues from the final budget was mainly due to the Local Option Sales
Taxes received being below estimate by approximately $290,000. The variance was the result of management’s expectation
that the economy would significantly improve, however that did not materialize. Interest revenues were also below
expectations by approximately $121,000 due to low interest rates compared to previous years.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities at December 31,
2010 amounts to $54,682,272 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings,
improvements, automobiles and equipment, sidewalks, bridges and roads.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year include the following:

$605,900 was spent on engineering and construction costs related to streetscapes and trails.

$53,100 for completion of construction of the community center.

$2,955,600 for planning, design and construction of the new police and court facilities.

$430,000 for the purchase of land..

$97,000 for engineering and design of wastewater treatment plant improvements.

$2,486,500 for a water main replacement program to be funded through proceeds from a loan and grant
program administered by the Georgia Environmental Facilities Authority.

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 8.
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Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year the City had $17,892,431 in outstanding debt consisting of the
following;:

City of Stockbridge's Outstanding Debt

Balance

Governmental Activities -
Accrued Compensated Absences 56,958
Accrued OPEB Obligation 4,972
Revenue Bonds 16,235,000

Business-Type Activities -
GEFA Notes Payable 1,507,350
Accrued Compensated Absences 88,151
Total $17,892,431

The City’s total debt increased by $1,003,529. Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in note 9.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 10% of its total assessed
valuation. The current debt limitation for the City of Stockbridge is $77,944,550, which is significantly in excess of the
City of Stockbridge’s outstanding general obligation debt.

Status of the City of Stockbridge’s Economy

The unemployment rate for the City of Stockbridge is currently 10.4 percent, which is consistent with the state but
higher than the national rates.

Inflationary trends in the region compare favorably to national indices.

Building permits were sharply down in 2010 due to the continued slowdown in the building industry as a whole.
Occupational taxes (business licenses) were down due to the economy. These are based on gross receipts.

The occupancy rate of the City’s downtown area has improved in recent years; however, it is not up to its full
potential.

The City’s plan for a new town center has been put on hold due to the downturn in the economy.

Sales tax receipts have shown a slight increase in recent months.

Although the City has been fecling the effects of the current economic times, as with the rest of the State and the
Nation, the City’s General Fund still remains in good financial shape with unrestricted reserves of $8,318,250 or
160.3 percent of total General Fund expenditures.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the City of Stockbridge’s budget for Fiscal Year 2011.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Stockbridge’s finances, comply with finance-
related laws and regulations, and demonstrate the City’s commitment to public accountability. Questions concerning this
report or requests for additional information can be obtained by contacting the City at (770) 389-7900 or at the following

address:

City of Stockbridge
Finance Department
464@ Kok Hoakpidgdevard

Stickibeeddep@ABIRS 1
4640 North Henry Boulevard

Stockbridge, GA 30281
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CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 2010
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 3,690,699 $ 779,552 $ 4,470,251
Investments 5,544,129 58,000 5,602,129
Receivables (net of allowance for
uncollectibles)
Taxes 1,455,607 - 1,455,607
Intergovernmental 267,721 - 267,721
Fines 248,824 - 248,824
Accounts 2,284 541,931 544,215
Other 8,808 - 8,808
Internal Balances (1,516,241) 1.516,241 -
Inventory - 139,870 139,870
Prepaid Items 87,869 - 87,869
Restricted Assets -
Cash 2,708,609 412,499 3,121,108
Investments 882,513 - 882,513
Interest receivable 48 - 48
Non-Depreciable Capital Assets 13,274,149 4,146,536 17.420.,685
Depreciable Capital Assets, Net 22,580,470 14,681,117 37,261,587
Deferred Cost, Net 141,133 58,730 199,863
Total Assets 49,376,622 22,334,476 71,711,098
Liabilities
Accounts Payable 720,839 315,913 1,036,752
Due To Other Governments - -
Accrued Liabilities -
Salaries 20,741 23,450 44,191
Police bonds 30,192 - 30,192
Customer deposits - 104,097 104,097
Interest 311,693 15,315 327,008
Other 21,307 - 21,307
Deferred Revenues - 1,006.416 1,006,416
Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets -
Revenue bonds - - -
Accrued interest - - -
Long-Term Liabilities -
Due within one year 500,000 13,446 513,446
Due in more than one year 15,796,930 1,582,055 17,378,985
Total Liabilities 17,401,702 3,060,692 20,462,394
Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of
Related Debt 19,619,619 17,320,303 36,939,922
Restricted For -
Perpetual care:
Expendable 6.071 - 6,071
Nonexpendable 5.000 - 5,000
Debt service - - -
Capital projects 3,364,125 412,499 3,776.624
Unrestricted 8,980,105 1,540,982 10,521.087
Total Net Assets $ 31,974,920 $ 19,273,784 $ 51,248,704

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Program Revenues

Charges Operating Capital
for Grants and Grants and

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions
Governmental Activities:
General Government $ 2515610 $ 262,785  $ - $ 508,280
Public Safety and Courts 1,080,261 737,145 - 95,006
Highways and Streets 1,971,459 7,029 ] - 1,381,960
Parks and Recreation 228,944 10,006 - -
Urban Redevelopment 58,662 64,604 - -
Code Enforcement 74,782 45,188 - -
Interest on Long-Term Debt 749,810 - - -

Total Governmental Activities 6,679,528 1,126,757 - 1,985,246
Business-Type Activities:
Water 1,227,051 1,462,371 - 1,176,765
Sewer 1,437,926 1,293,628 - 1,848
Solid Waste Management 966,489 1,152,171 - -
Conference Center 518,217 174,984 - -
Community Center 70,853 24,281 -
Stormwater Management 471,972 491,631 - -

Total Business-Type Activities 4,692,508 4,599,066 - 1,178,613
Total Government $§ 11,372,036 $ 5,725823 § - $ 3,163,859

General Revenues:
Taxes:
Intangible
Franchise
Local option sales
Occupational
Insurance premium
Alcohol beverage
Hotel/Motel
Other
Investment earnings
Gain on disposal of capital assets
Other
Total General Revenues
Transfers

Total General Revenues and Transfers

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets - Beginning of Year

Net Assets - End of Year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Assets

Business-
Governmental Type
Activities Activities Total

$  (1,744,545) $ - $  (1,744,545)
(248,110) - (248,110)
(582,470) - (582,470)
(218,938) - (218,938)
5,942 - 5,942
(29,594) - (29,594)
(749,810) - (749,810)
(3,567,525) - (3,567,525)
- 1,412,085 1,412,085
- (142,450) (142,450)

- 185,682 185,682
- (343,233) (343,233)
- (46,572) (46,572)

- 19,659 19,659

- 1,085,171 1,085,171
(3,567,525) 1,085,171 (2,482,354)
25,396 - 25,396
1,334,679 - 1,334,679
3,130,180 - 3,130,180
490,959 - 490,959
530,405 - 530,405
589,448 - 589,448
95,008 - 95,008
5,373 - 5,373
155,468 7,378 162,846
15,399 - 15,399
6,372,315 7,378 6,379,693

(1,061,552) 1,061,552 -

5,310,763 1,068,930 6,379,693
1,743,238 2,154,101 3,897,339
30,231,682 17,119,683 47,351,365

$ 31,974,920 $ 19,273,784 § 51,248,704




CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2010
CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS
HOTEL/
GENERAL MOTEL SPLOST 11 SPLOST 111
ASSETS
Cash $ 3137610 $ - $ 105,032 $ 2422254
Investments 5,544,129 - - 871,490
Receivables-
Accounts 2,284 - - -
Interest 8,808 - - -
Taxes 1,446,668 8,939 - -
Fines 248 824 - - -
Intergovernmental - - - -
Due from other funds 29,929 - 1,219 -
Prepaid items 87.869 - - -
Restricted assets-
Cash - - - -
Total Assets $ 10,506,121 $ 8.939 $ 106.251 $ 3293744
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts payable -
Trade $ 281,289 $ 7,952 $ - $ -
Construction - - - 96,317
Due to other funds 1,539,367 - - 7,336
Accrued salaries and wages 20,741 - - -
Accrued police bonds 30,192 - - -
Other accrued expenditures 21,307 - - -
Deferred revenues 207,106 - - -
Total Liabilities 2,100,002 7,952 - 103,653
Fund Balance
Reserved for prepaid items 87,869 - - -
Reserved for capital projects - - 106,251 3,190,091
Reserved for perpetual care - - - -
Unreserved 8,318.250 987 - -
Total Fund Balance 8,406,119 987 106,251 3,190,091

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 10,506,121 $ 8,939 $ 106,251 $ 3293744

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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PERMANENT

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS FUND
STATE AND URBAN RE- TOTAL
FEDERAL DEVELOPMENT PERPETUAL GOVERNMENTAL
GRANTS FUND CARE FUNDS

553,080 $ - $ - $ 6,217,985

. - 11,023 6,426,642

- - - 2,284

- - 48 8,856

- - - 1,455,607

- - - 248,824

267,721 - - 267,721

- . - 31,148

- - - 87.869

- 181,323 - 181,323

820,810 $ 181323 § 11,071 $ 14928259

- $ - $ - $ 289,241

221,927 113,354 - 431,598

500 186 - 1,547,389

- - . 20,741

- - - 30,192

- - - 21,307

184,735 - - 391,841

407.162 113,540 - 2,732,309

- - - 87,869

67,783 - 3,364,125

- - 11,071 11,071

413,648 - - 8,732,885

413,648 67,783 11,071 12,195,950

820810 $ 181323 § 11071 $ 14928259
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CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2010

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net

assets are different because:

Total fund balances -- total governmental funds

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-
period expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds:

Deferred revenues

Bonds issuance costs are expensed in the funds, but are
amortized over the life of the bonds in the statement of

net assets:
Deferred issuance costs

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current

period and therefore are not reported in the funds:

Revenue bonds

Accrued interest

Long-term portion of OPEB obligation
Long-term portion of compensated absences

Net assets of governmental activities.

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

HOTEL/
GENERAL MOTEL SPLOST I1 SPLOST 111
REVENUES
Taxes $ 6,117,592 $ 95,008 $ - $ -
Licenses and Permits 173,644 - - -
Fines, Fees and Forfeitures 775.496 - - -
Charges For Services 1,417 - - -
Intergovernmental - - - 1,560,824
Interest 149,214 - 390 9,031
Rental Income 66,319 - - -
Other 47,652 - - -
Total Revenues 7,331,334 95,008 390 1,569,855
EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government 1,936,207 - - -
Public Safety 472,637 - - -
Municipal Court 585,113 - - -
Highways and Streets 1,723,970 - - -
Parks 189,200 - - -
Library 71,855 - - -
Urban Redevelopment - - - -
Code Enforcement - - - -
Tourism and Promotion - 62,105 - -
Capital Outlay 211,101 - - 1,548,898
Debt Service -
Principal - - - -
Interest - - - -
Total Expenditures 5,190,083 62,105 - 1,548,898
[xcess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 2,141,251 32,903 390 20,957

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers (1,628,477) (36,336) - -
Disposal of Capital Assets - - - -
Proceeds from Henry County Splost Bonds - - - -
[ssuance of Debt - - - -

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses): (1,628,477) (36,336) - -
Net Change In Fund Balance 512,774 (3,433) 390 20,957
Fund Balance - Beginning 7,893,345 4420 105,861 3,169,134
Fund Balance - Ending $ 8406119 $ 987 $ 106,251 $ 3,190,091

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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PERMANENT

CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS FUND
STATE AND URBAN RE- TOTAL
FEDERAL DEVELOPMENT  PERPETUAL GOVERNMENTAL
GRANTS FUND CARE _ FUNDS
$ - $ - $ - $ 6,212,600
- - - 173,644
- - - 775,496
- - - 1,417
239,688 - - 1,800,512
1,989 3,980 284 164,888
- - - 66,319
- 64,604 . 112.256
241,677 68,584 284 9,307,132
- - - 1,936,207
- - - 472,637
- - - 585.113
- - - 1,723,970
- - - 189,200
- - . 71,855
- 51,634 - 51,634
- - - 62.105
608.366 2,004,719 - 4,373,084
; 455,000 - 455,000
- 758,539 - 758.539
608.366 3,269,892 - 10,679,344
(366,689) (3.201,308) 284 (1,372,212)
227,166 1,213,539 - (224,108)
227.166 1.213.539 - (224.108)
(139.523) (1,987.769) 284 (1,596.320)
553,171 2.055,552 10,787 13,792,270
$ 413,648 $ 67783 $ 11071 $ 12195950




CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Net change in fund balances -- total governmental funds $ (1,596,320)
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the
amount by which capital outlays ($4,365,646) exceeded
depreciation expense ($873,263) in the current period. 3,492,383
Transfer of capital assets to various proprietary funds -
Water & Sewer Fund (97,827)
Community Center Fund (739,617)
Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds,
but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net
assets. Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the
governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in
the statement of net assets. This is the amount by which repayments
($455,000) exceeded proceeds ($-0-) 455,000
Bonds issuance costs are expensed in the funds, but are
amortized over the life of the bonds in the statement of
net assets. This is the change in bond issue cost. (7,027)
Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. This is the difference
between the beginning and ending deferred revenue balances related to
timing differences. 177,186
Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds:
Change in accrued interest 8,729
Change in long-term portion of accrued OPEB obligation -
Change in long-term portion of accrued compensated absences 50,731
Change in net assets of governmental activities. $ 1,743,238

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -- BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Fines, Fees and Forfeitures
Charges for Services
Interest
Rental Income
Other

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government
Public Safety
Municipal Court
Highways and Streets
Parks
Code Enforcement
Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess of revenues over (under) expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Proceeds From Disposal of Capital Assets -

Transfers

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance - Beginning

Fund Balance - Ending

BUDGET AMOUNTS
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL VARIANCE
S 6415394 $ 6417394 $ 6,117,592 $  (299,802)

156,200 169,200 173,644 4,444
735,750 735,750 775,496 39,746
6,900 6,900 1,417 (5,483)
270,500 270,500 149,214 (121,286)
62,393 62,393 66,319 3,926
5,000 37,627 47,652 10,025
7,652,137 7,699,764 7,331,334 (368.,430)
2,314,853 2,317,511 1,936,207 381,304
480,000 480,000 472,637 7,363
559,792 603,359 585,113 18,246
1,747,653 1,850,914 1,723,970 126,944
226,569 226,569 189,200 37,369
81,170 81,170 71,855 9,315
747,787 699,957 211,101 488,856

6,157,824 6,259,480 5,190,083 1,069,397

1,494313 1,440,284 2,141,251 700,967

(2,295.257)  (2,155,072) (1,628,477) 526,595

(2,295,257)  (2,155,072) (1,628,477) 526,595

(800,944) (714,788) 512,774 1,227,562

7,893,345 7,893,345 7,893,345 -
$ 7092401 $ 7,178,557 $ 8406119 $ 1227562

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE--BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
HOTEL / MOTEL TAX FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

BUDGET VARIANCE
AMOUNTS WITH FINAL
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL BUDGET
REVENUES
Taxes $ 125,000 $ 87,500 $ 95,008 $ 7,508
Miscellaneous - - - -
Total Revenues 125,000 87,500 95,008 7,508
EXPENDITURES
Current-
Tourism and Promotion-
Tourism 75,000 22,500 24,095 (1,595)
Payments to others 50,000 35,000 38,010 (3,010)
Capital Outlay-
Site improvements - - - -
Total Expenditures 125,000 57,500 62,105 (4,605)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures - 30,000 32,903 2,903
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers - (30,000) (36,336) (6,336)
Total - (30,000) (36,336) (6,336)
Net Change in Fund Balances - - (3,433) (3,433)
Fund Balance - Beginning of year 4,420 4,420 4,420 -
Fund Balance - End of year $ 4,420 $ 4,420 $ 987 $ (3,433)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31,2010
Water and Solid Waste Conference
Sewer Management Center
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash $ 231,481 $ - -
Investments 58,000 - -
Receivables-
Accounts (net) 266,829 75,984 5,871
Unbilled sales 95,449 - -
Due from other funds 590,191 948,457 -
Inventory 139,870 - -
Restricted assets -
Cash 412,499 - -
Investments - - -
Total current assets 1,794,319 1,024,441 5,871
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital assets
Land 416,962 - 28,641
Buildings - - 3,293,119
Improvements other than buildings 14,801,065 36,116 21,000
Vehicles 345,295 950,060 -
Furniture and equipment 20,646 - 408,835
Infrastructure - - -
Machinery and equipment 879,896 13,536 179,026
Construction in progress 3,700,933 - -
Accumulated depreciation (5,506,192) (813,895) (877,012)
Capital assets (net of depreciation) 14,658,605 185,817 3,053,609
Other assets
Deferred loan cost, net of amortization 58,730 - -
Total other assets 58,730 - -
Total noncurrent assets 14,717,335 185,817 3,053,609
Total Assets 16,511,654 1,210,258 3,059,480

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Community Stormwater
Center Management Total

$ 10,933 $ 537,138 779,552
- - 58,000

- 97,798 446,482

- - 95,449

- - 1,538,648

- - 139,870

- - 412,499

10,933 634,936 3,470,500

- - 445,603
739,617 - 4,032,736

- - 14,858,181

- 168,747 1,464,102

3,563 - 433,044

- 164,437 164,437

4,500 31,914 1,108,872

- - 3,700,933
(13,149) (170,007) (7,380,255)
734,531 195,091 18,827,653

- - 58,730

- - 58,730
734,531 195,091 18,886,383
745,464 830,027 22,356,883

Continued



CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2010
Water and Solid Waste Conference
Sewer Management Center
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable -
Trade $ 40,584 $ 3,418 $ 3,338
Construction 241,180 - -
Due to other funds - - -
Customer deposits 86,726 - 14,021
Accrued compensated absences 5,000 2,000 1,000
Accrued salaries 12,743 5,280 3,281
Deferred revenues - 1,006,416 -
Notes payable - - -
Accrued interest 15,315 - -
Total current liabilities 401,548 1,017,114 21,640
Noncurrent Liabilities
Notes payable 1,507,350 - -
Accrued compensated absences 36,213 11,570 10,691
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,543,563 11,570 10,691
Total Liabilities 1,945,111 1,028,684 32,331
Net Assets
Investments in capital assets, net of related debt 13,151,255 185,817 3,053,609
Restricted for capital outlay 412,499 - -
Unrestricted 1,002,789 (4,243) (26,460)
Total Net Assets $ 14,566,543 $ 181,574 $ 3,027,149

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Community Stormwater

Center Management Total
$ 186 $ 27,207 $ 74,733
- - 241,180
- 22,407 22,407
3,350 - 104,097
3,446 2,000 13,446
- 2,146 23,450
- - 1,006,416
- - 15,315
6,982 53,760 1,501,044
- - 1,507,350
- 16,231 74,705
- 16,231 1,582,055
6,982 69,991 3,083,099
734,531 195,091 17,320,303
- - 412,499
3,951 564,945 1,540,982
$ 738,482 $ 760,036 $§ 19,273,784

Concluded



CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2610

Water and Solid Waste Conference
Sewer Management Center
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services -
Water sales $ 1,405,545 $ - $ -
Sewer charges 1,257,862 - -
Sanitation fees - 1,076,149 -
Rentals - - 174,984
Stormwater fees - - -
Penalties and reconnect fees 71,531 - -
Miscellaneous 21,061 - -
Total operating revenues 2,755,999 1,076,149 174,984
OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchase of product 502,958 - -
Salaries and related cost 939,957 585,728 237,741
Professional fees 75,266 - -
Supplies and materials 206,535 88,798 17,111
Repairs and maintenance 176,312 54,567 94,223
Utilities 203,996 - 27,384
Depreciation and amortization 429,456 76,393 111,623
Other 130,497 161,003 30,135
Total operating expenses 2,664,977 966,489 518,217
Operating income (10ss) 91,022 109,660 (343,233)
Non-operating revenues and (expenses)
Interest earned 2,727 - -
Rental income - 76,022 -
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 2,727 76,022 -
Income before transfers
and capital contributions 93,749 185,682 (343,233)
Capital contributions -
Water 1,176,765 - -
Sewer 99,675 - -
Community Center - - -
Transfers 242,447 (312,899) 249,123
Change in net assets 1,612,636 (127,217) (94,110)
NET ASSETS - BEGINNING 12,953,907 308,791 3,121,259
NET ASSETS - ENDING $ 14,566,543 3 181,574 $ 3,027,149

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Community Stormwater

Center Management Total

- $ - $ 1,405,545

- - 1,257,862

- - 1,076,149
24,281 - 199,265
- 491,631 491,631

- - 71,531

- - 21,061
24,281 491,631 4,523,044
- - 502,958
34,915 181,365 1,979,706
- 185,631 260,897
10,313 22,627 345,384
9,769 50,191 385,062

- - 231,380
13,149 32,158 662,779
2,707 - 324,342
70,853 471,972 4,692,508
(46,572) 19,659 (169,464)
- 4,651 7,378

- - 76,022

- 4,651 83,400
(46,572) 24,310 (86,064)
- - 1,176,765

- - 99,675
739,617 - 739,617
45,437 - 224,108
738,482 24,310 2,154,101
- 735,726 17,119,683

738,482 $ 760,036 $§ 19,273,784




CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Water and Solid Waste Conference
Sewer Management Center
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers and users $ 2,712,419 = $ 1,227,273 $ 158,524
Cash paid to suppliers for goods (1,732,711) (560,240) (224,925)
Cash paid to employees (637,731) (337,463) (178,032)
Net cash provided from operating activities 341,977 329,570 (244,433)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received 2,727 - -
Redemption of investments - - -
Net cash flows from investing activities 2,727 - -
Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Transfers 242,447 (312,899) 249,123
Change in due to/from other funds (590,191) (16,671) -
Net cash flows from non-capital
financing activities (347,744) (329,570) 249,123
Cash flows from capital financing activities:
Proceeds from long-term debt 1,507,350 - -
Principal payments on long-term debt - - -
Interest paid - - -
Capital contributions 1,178,613 - -
Purchase / construction of capital assets (2,378,489) - (4,690)
Loan costs (58,730) - -
Net cash flows from capital financing activities 248,744 - (4,690)
Net cash flows 245,704 - -
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning 398,276 - -
Cash and cash equivalents - ending $ 643,980 $ - $ -

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Community Stormwater

Center Management Total

$ 27,631 $ 487,067 $ 4,612,914
(33,762) (289,605) (2,841,243)
(20,310) (124,872) (1,298,408)
(26,441) 72,590 473,263

- 4,651 7,378

- 4,651 7,378

45,437 - 224,108
- 59,471 (547,391)
45,437 59,471 (323,283)

- - 1,507,350

- - 1,178,613
(8,063) (9,461) (2,400,703)
- - (58,730)

(8,063) (9,461) 226,530

10,933 127,251 383,888

- 409,887 808,163

$ 10,933 $ 537,138 $ 1,192,051

Continued



CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Water and Solid Waste Conference
Sewer Management Center
Operating income (loss) $ 91,022 $ 109,660 $ (343,233)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 429,456 76,393 111,623
(Increase) decrease in receivables (49,298) 472 (3,871)
(Increase) decrease in inventory (22,186) - -
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (120,434) (2,949) 2,876
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits 5,718 - (12,589)
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities 7,699 (4,658) 761
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenues - 74,630 -
Rental income - 76,022 -
Total adjustments 250,955 219,910 98,800
Net cash from operating activities $ 341,977 $ 329,570 $ (244,433)
Non-cash transactions -
Construction of various improvements for
proprietary funds but paid for by the SPLOST
Capital Projects Fund and considered capital
contributions by the proprietary funds $ 97,827 $ - $ -

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Community Stormwater
~ Center ‘Management ~ Total
$ (46,572) $ 19,659 (169,464)
13,149 32,158 662,779
- (4,564) (57,261)
- - (22,186)
186 27,207 (93,114)
3,350 - (3,521)
3,446 (1,870) 5,378
- - 74,630
- - 76,022
20,131 52,931 642,727
3 (26,441) $ 72,590 473,263
$ 739,617 $ - 837,444

Concluded



CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

A. Basis of Presentation

The City’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for
state and local governments through its pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations). Governments are also
required to follow the pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued through
November 30, 1989, when applicable, that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. Although
the City has the option to apply FASB pronouncements issued after that date to its business-type activities, if
applicable, the City has chosen not to do so. The more significant accounting policies established in GAAP and
used by the City are discussed below.

B. The Reporting Entity

The City of Stockbridge, Georgia (the City) was incorporated in 1920 and is located in the northern part of
Henry County about 18 miles south of Atlanta. The City provides a full range of services to approximately
22,000 residents. These services are provided in whole by the City or through contractual agreements with
Henry County. These services include police services, community development, highways and streets, water
and sewer, sanitation, parks, public improvements, planning and zoning, and general administrative services.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 14 defines the reporting entity for determining which
potential component units should be included in a primary government’s financial statements. Inclusion is
based on financial accountability or the fact that exclusion would make the financial statements misleading or
incomplete. The criteria for determining financial accountability includes appointing a voting majority of an
organization’s governing body and (1) the ability of the City to impose its will on that organization or (2) the
potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits or to impose specific financial burdens on the
City. The City has excluded from the City’s financial report the Stockbridge Downtown Development
Authority, a development authority recognized under the laws of the State of Georgia, since it is currently
inactive.

Blended Component Unit — Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part
of the government’s operations. The City of Stockbridge Urban Redevelopment Agency was created by the
City’s elected officials to provide for the issuance of bonds to finance the construction of the Town Center
facilities including City Hall. Although legally separate, the Urban Redevelopment Agency is blended as a
major governmental fund into the primary government. Separate financial statements for the Corporation are
not issued.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued):

C. Basic Financial Statements-Government-Wide Statements

The City’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the City as a whole) and fund
financial statements (reporting the City’s major funds). Both the government-wide and fund financial statements
categorize primary activities as either governmental or business type.

The government-wide Statement of Net Assets presents the financial condition of the governmental and
business-type activities of the City at year end. The statement is presented on a consolidated basis and is
reported on a full accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as
well as long-term debt and obligations. The City’s net assets are reported in three parts—invested in capital
assets, net of related debt; restricted net assets; and unrestricted net assets. The City first utilizes restricted
resources to finance qualifying activities.

The government-wide Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for each program or function of the City’s governmental activities and for business-type activities of
the City. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, program, or department and
therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function. The City does not allocate indirect cost. Program revenues
include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services offered by the program, grants and contributions
that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program, and interest earned
on grants that is required to be used to support a particular program. Revenues which are not classified as
program revenues are presented as general revenues of the City, with certain limited exceptions. The
comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to which each governmental program
or business activity is self-finances or draws from the general revenues of the City.

The net costs (by function) are normally covered by general revenue (property, sales or use taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, interest income, etc.).

This government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the City as an entity and the change in the City’s
net assets resulting from the current year’s activities.

D. Basic Financial Statements-Fund Financial Statements

The financial transactions of the City are reported in individual funds in the fund financial statements. Each
fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities,
reserves, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. Government resources are allocated to and
accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by
which spending activities are controlled. Fund financial statements are designed to present financial
information of the City at this more detailed level. The focus of governmental and enterprise fund financial
statements is on major funds. Each major fund is presented in a separate column. Nonmajor funds are
aggregated and presented in a single column. The City has only seven governmental funds and four enterprise
funds and considers all of the funds to be major funds.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial
statements.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued):

D. Basic Financial Statements-Fund Financial Statements — Continued:

Governmental Fund Types — Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of
the City are financed. Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses, and balances of current
financial resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds according to the purposes
for which they may or must be used. Current liabilities are assigned to the fund from which they will be paid.
The difference between governmental fund assets and liabilities is reported as fund balance. The following are
the City’s major governmental funds:

General Fund — The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City. It is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Hotel / Motel Tax Fund — Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources (other than special assessments, expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally
restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. The City’s only Special Revenue Fund is the Hotel/Motel
Tax Fund.

The SPLOST Capital Projects Funds — These funds are used by the City to account for acquisition and
construction of major capital facilities that were approved by the voters of Henry County, Georgia through
the special purpose local option sales tax referendum.

The State and Federal Grants Capital Projects Fund — This fund is used to account for the acquisition
and construction of major capital facilities, other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds,
that are financed with state and federal financial assistance.

The Urban Redevelopment Capital Projects Fund — This fund is used to account for the proceeds for the
issuance of bonds to finance the construction of the Town Center facilities.

Perpetual Care Permanent Fund — The Perpetual Care Permanent Fund accounts for principal trust
amounts received and related interest income. The interest portion of the trust can be used to maintain the
community cemetery.

Proprietary Fund Type — Proprietary fund reporting focuses on the determination of operating income,
changes in net assets, financial position, and cash flows. The City’s proprietary funds are classified as enterprise
funds. Enterprise funds may be used to account for any activity for which a fee is charged to external users for
goods or services. The following are the City’s major proprietary funds:

Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund — This fund is used to account for activities connected with the
development, operation, and maintenance of water and sewer in Stockbridge and parts of Henry Co.

Solid Waste Management Enterprise Fund - The Solid Waste Management Enterprise Fund is used to
account for the revenues generated from the charges for sanitation and recycling services provided to the
residential and commercial users of the City.

The Conference Center Fund — This fund accounts for activities related to the Merle Manders Conference
Center.

The Community Center Fund — Created during 2010 to account for activities related to the Ted
Strickland Community Center. The Community Center building was completed during 2010 and facilitates
community activities for city residents.

Stormwater Management Fund — This fund was created during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004,
to account for revenues generated from the charges for stormwater services provided to the citizens of
Stockbridge.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)

28



CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE., GEORGIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued):

E. Measurement Focus

Government-Wide Financial Statements — The government-wide financial statements are prepared using the
economic resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of the City
are included on the statement of net assets.

Fund Financial Statements — All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial
resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally
are included on the balance sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances
reports on the sources (i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other
financing uses) of current financial resources. This approach differs from the manner in which the governmental
activities of government-wide financial statements are prepared. Therefore, governmental fund financial
statements include reconciliations with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the
government-wide and the governmental funds financial statements.

Like the government-wide statements, all proprietary funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources
measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the
statement of fund net assets. The statement of changes in revenues, expenses, and changes in fund net assets
presents increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in net total assets. The statement of cash flows
provides information about how the City finances and meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary activities.

On the proprietary funds financial statements, operating revenues are those that flow directly from the
operations of the activity, i.e. charges to customers or users who purchase or use the goods or services of that
activity. Operating expenses are those that are incurred to provide the goods or services. Non-operating
revenues and expenses are items such as investment income and interest expense that are not a result of the
direct operations of the activity.

F. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are recognized in the
accounts and reported in the financial statements. It relates to the timing of the measurements made regardless
of the measurement focus applied.

1. Accrual

Government-wide financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting; proprietary funds also
use the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when
incurred.

2. Modified Accrual

The governmental funds financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under
the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrual; i.e., both
measurable and available. “Available” means collectible within the current period or within 60 days after year
end. Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related
liability is incurred. The exception to this general rule is that principal and interest on general obligation long-
term debt, if any, is recognized when due.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued):

F. Basis of Accounting - Continued

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are taxes, state and federal grants, fines, interest revenue and charges for
services. Major revenues that are determined not to be susceptible to accrual because they are either not
available soon enough to pay liabilities of the current period or are not objectively measurable include licenses,
penalties and miscellaneous revenues which are recorded as revenues when received in cash. Those revenues
that are measurable but are not collected within 60 days after year end are recorded as deferred revenues.

G. Cash and Investments

Cash includes amounts in demand deposits as well as short-term investments with a maturity date within three
months of the date acquired by the City. For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Enterprise Funds
consider all highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents.

The City’s investments consist of certificates of deposit with a maturity date greater than three months from the
date of purchase and the State of Georgia’s Georgia Fund 1. For reporting purposes, all investments are
recorded at fair value.

In applying GASB Statement No. 31, the City utilized the following methods and assumptions as of December
31,2010:

1. Fair value is based on quoted market prices as of the valuation date;

2. The investment portfolio did not hold investments in any of the following: a) items required to be
reported at amortized costs; b) items subject to involuntary participation in an external pool; and c)
items associated with a fund other than the fund to which the income is assigned.

The City’s policy is to hold investments until maturity.

H. Inventory

Inventory held for resale, if any, is valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. Inventory, if any, in
the General Fund consists of expendable supplies held for consumption and is valued at cost. The cost is
recorded as expenditure at the time individual inventory items are used, rather than in the period purchased.
Reported inventories are equally offset by a fund balance reserve, which indicates that they do not constitute
“available spendable resources” even though they are a component of net current assets. Inventories of the
Water and Sewer Fund consist of various repair parts and supplies.

1. Prepaid Expenses

Payments made to vendors for service that will benefit periods beyond December 31, 2010 are recorded as
prepaid items and are expensed during the period benefited.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued):

J. Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds from the Water and Sewer Enterprise and the Urban Redevelopment Agency Funds debt
issues are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because they are maintained in separate bank
accounts and their use is limited by applicable debt covenants.

K. Capital Assets

General capital assets are capital assets which are associated with and generally arise from governmental
activities. They generally result from expenditures in governmental funds. General capital assets are reported in
the governmental activities column of the government-wide statement of net assets but are not reported in the
fund financial statements. Capital assets utilized by the proprietary funds are reported both in the business-type
activities column of the government-wide statement of net assets and in the respective funds.

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $3,500 or more are reported at historical cost or
estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair market value as of the date received. Additions,
improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other
costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Interest incurred during the construction
phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets
constructed. Interest in the amount of $15.315 was capitalized during fiscal year ended December 31, 2010.
Depreciation on all assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and improvements 30-50 years
Improvement other than buildings 25-50 years
Furniture and fixtures ' 10-20 years
Vehicles 5-10 years
Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
Infrastructure 40-50 years

The City only reports infrastructure assets purchased subsequent to December 31, 2003.

L. Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported in the government-wide financial
statements. All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations payable from proprietary funds are
reported on the proprietary fund financial statements.

In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner
and in full from current financial resources, are reported as obligations of the funds. However, claims and
judgments and compensated absences that will be paid from governmental funds are reported as liabilities in the
fund financial statements only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current year. Long-term
loans are recognized as a liability on the governmental fund financial statements when due.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued):

M. Revenues

Substantially all governmental fund revenues are accrued. When applicable, property taxes are billed and
collected within the same period in which the taxes are levied. In applying GASB No. 33 to grant revenues, the
provider recognizes liabilities and expenses and the recipient recognizes receivables and revenues when the
applicable eligibility requirements, including time requirements, are met. Resources transmitted before the
eligibility requirements are met are reported as advances by the provider and deferred revenue by the recipient.

N. Expenditures

Expenditures are recognized when the related fund liability is incurred. Inventory costs are reported in the
period when inventory items are used, rather than in the period purchased.

0. Compensated Absences

The City accrues accumulated unpaid vacation and sick leave benefits, which will be paid to employees upon
separation from service, when earned (or estimated to be earned) by the employee. The noncurrent portion (the
amount estimated to be used in subsequent fiscal years) for governmental funds is maintained separately and
represents a reconciling item between the fund and government-wide presentations. In accordance with the
provisions of Statement No. 16 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, Accounting for
Compensated Absences, no liability is recorded for nonvesting accumulating rights to receive sick pay benefits.

P. Interfund Activity

Interfund activity is reported as either loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers. Loans are reported
as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon consolidation. Services
provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures/expenses and
are not eliminated in the process of consolidation. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the
appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are
treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to the
government-wide financial statements. As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated
from the government-wide financial statements.

Q. Encumbrances

Encumbrances accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the expenditures
of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is not employed by the
City.

R. Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital assets, net of
related debt, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of
any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Net assets are reported as
restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other
governments.

The City’s government-wide statement of net assets reports $3,787,695 of restricted net assets, $3,296,342 of

which is restricted by enabling legislation.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — (Continued):

R. Net Assets - Continued

The City applies restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted
net assets are available.

S. Fund Equity
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that are

not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose.
Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.

T. Contributions of Capital

Contributions of capital in the proprietary fund financial statements arise from outside contributions of capital
assets, tap-on fees to the extent they exceed the cost of connection to the system, or from grants or outside
contributions of resources restricted to capital acquisition and construction.

U. Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

V. Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

The City Council adopts an annual budget for all of the City’s funds and is required by state law to adopt annual
budgets for the General Fund and all special revenue funds i.e. Hotel / Motel Tax Fund. Public hearings are
conducted to obtain taxpayer comments. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of
financing them. The budget is legally enacted by the passage of an ordinance. Any revisions that alter the total
expenditures of any department must be approved by City Council. Formal budgetary integration is employed
as a management control device during the year.

Governmental fund type budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) at the legal level of budgetary control which is the department level. Expenditures may not

exceed the appropriations within a fund. Budgets, as reported in the financial statements, are as amended in
December 2010. All annual appropriations lapse at year end.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report).
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2.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure the
government’s deposits may not be returned to it. The City’s financial policies require all deposits in excess of
Federal Deposit Insurance be collateralized by securities equal to at least 110% of the excess deposits. As of
December 31, 2010, $12,768,495 of the government’s bank balance of $13,518,495 was exposed to custodial
credit risk as follows:

Investments Maturities Fair Value

Georgia Fund 1 48 days average $ 871,490

Investments

The City’s financial policies authorize investment in any securities approved by the State of Georgia for local
governments. Authorized investments include certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, direct and agency
obligations of the United States, obligations of the State of Georgia, pooled investment programs of the State of
Georgia, and no-load mutual funds of direct obligations of the United States.

Investments as of December 31, 2010, consisted of 1) certificates of deposit in the amount of $5,613,152 and
are included in the above mentioned bank balances, and 2) The Georgia Fund 1 in the amount of $871,490.

Additional information regarding the Georgia Fund 1 follows:

Investments Maturities Fair Value

Georgia Fund | 46 days average $ 871,490

“Georgia Fund 17 created by OCGA 36-83-8, is a stable net asset value investment pool which follows
Standard and Poor’s criteria for AAAm rated money market funds. However, Georgia Fund | operates in a
manner consistent with Rule 2a-7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940 and is considered to be a 2a-7 like
pool. The pool is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. The pool’s primary objectives are
safety of capital, investment income, liquidity and diversification while maintaining principal ($1.00 per share
value). Net asset value is calculated weekly to ensure stability. The pool distributes earnings (net of
management fees) on a monthly basis and determines participant’s shares sold and redeemed based on $1.00 per
share. The fund is managed by the Georgia Office of Treasury and Fiscal Services (OTFS). OTFS is guided by
the policies of the State Depository Board and OCGA 55-17-2 and 50-17-63.

PROPERTY TAX

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1. The City, when applicable, obtains the
services of Henry County to bill and collect the City’s property taxes. The County remits taxes collected to the
City on a bi-monthly basis. Property taxes are levied approximately October 1 of each year and are due 60 days
after issuance. A local option sales tax is in force. Proceeds from this tax are remitted to the City monthly and
are utilized to give property tax owners tax relief. No property taxes were levied for the year ended December
31, 2010. There were no property taxes receivable as of December 31, 2010.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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4. INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES AND RECEIVABLES

Intergovernmental revenues reported in the fund financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2010

consist of the following:

SPLOST proceeds from Henry County, Georgia
U. S. Department of Transportation - LCI and Te Grants

Total

$

1,560,824

239,688

$

Intergovernmental receivables as of December 31, 2010 consist of the following:

State and Federal Grants Fund

U. S. Department of Transportation -

5. RECEIVABLES

$

1,800,512

267,721

Receivables as of year end, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Governmental Funds

Accounts

Interest

Taxes

Fines
Intergovernmental

Gross Receivables
Less: Allowance for
Uncollectibles

Net Total Receivables

State and
Hotel/ Federal Perpetual
General Motel Grants Care Total
$ 2,284  $ - $ - $ - $ 2,284
8,808 - - 48 8.856
1,446,668 8,939 - - 1,455,607
497,824 - - - 497,824
- - 267,721 - 267,721
1,955,584 8,939 267,721 48 2,232,292
(249,000) - - - (249,000)
$1,706,584 $ 8,939 § 267,721 §$ 48 % 1,983,292

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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5. RECEIVABLES, (Continue)

Proprietary Funds

Solid
Water and Waste Conference  Stormwater
Sewer Management Center Management Total
Accounts $ 381,778 $ 76,484 § 5871 $ 97,798 $ 561,931
Interest - - - - -
Gross Receivable 381,778 76,484 5,871 97,798 561,931
Less: Allowance for
Uncollectibles (19,500) (500) - - (20,000)

Net Total Receivable $ 362278 § 75,984 § 5871 $ 97,798 $ 541931

6. INTER-FUND TRANSACTIONS

Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balances at December 31, 2010 were as follows:

Payable To
Payable SPLOST Water and Solid

From General 11 Sewer Waste Total
General $ - $ 719 § 590,191 § 948,457  $ 1,539,367
SPLOST I1I 7,336 - - - 7,336
State and Federal Grants - 500 - - 500
Urban Redevelopment 186 - - - 186
Stormwater 22,407 - - - 22,407

Total $ 29929 § 1,219  $ 590,191 § 948,457  $ 1,569,796

During 2009 the City Council approved a change in the method of charging and collecting charges for
sanitation services. The City now bills for the service on the annual tax bills. The tax bills are prepared, mailed
and collected by the Henry County Tax Commissioner. Monies collected for 2009 sanitation services and
remitted to the City prior to year end were deposited into the City’s General Fund operating bank account. As a
result the General Fund owes the Solid Waste fund $948,457.

Other inter-fund receivables/payables are the result of receipts or expenditures being received or paid out of one
fund but are eligible to be received or paid out of another fund but were not reimbursed as of December 31,
2010.

Individual fund interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2010 were as follows:

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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6. INTER-FUND TRANSACTIONS. (Continued)

Individual fund inter-fund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2010 were as follows:

Transfer From

Transfer Solid
To General Hotel/Motel Waste Total
General $ - $ 36336 $ 312,899 $§ 349,235
State & Federal Grants 227,166 - - 227,166
Urban Redevelopment Fund 1,213,539 - - 1,213,539
Water & Sewer 242,447 - - 242 447
Community Center 45,437 - - 45,437
Conference Center 249,123 - - 249,123
Total $1977,712 $§ 36,336 $ 312,899  $ 2,326,947

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010, the General Fund transferred $249,123 to the Conference
Center Fund, $242,447 to the Water and Sewer Fund and $45,437 to the Community Center Fund all to help
finance operations of the various proprietary funds. The General Fund also transferred $227,166 to the State and
Federal Grants Capital Projects Fund to finance the City’s share of matching requirements under grant
agreements. During 2010 the General Fund transferred $1,213,539 to the Urban Redevelopment to help repay a
portion of the City’s long term debt.

In the Statement of Changes in Net Assets, additional transfers were recognized in the amount of $97,827 to the
Water and Sewer Fund and $739,617 to the Community Center Fund for capital assets transferred to the
individual proprietary funds. This increased the total transfers in the Statement of Changes in Net Assets to
$1,061,552. These transfers were for sewer improvements and community center building improvements
financed with SPLOST proceeds. These transactions were recognized as capital outlay expenditures in the
SPLOST Fund and as capital contributions in the Water and Sewer Fund and Community Center Fund.

7. DEFERRED COST

Urban Redevelopment Fund -

Debt issuance cost, net of accumulated

amortization of $30,664 $ 141,133
Water and Sewer Fund -

Debt issuance cost, net of accumulated

amortization of $-0- 58,730

Total Deferred Cost $ 199,863

Debt issuance costs are considered other financing uses in governmental funds in the year incurred but are
deferred costs and are amortized over the life of the related debt in the Statement of Net Assets and Proprietary
Fund Statements. Debt issuance costs are being amortized using the straight line method over the life of the
related debt issue. The debt issue cost is related to revenue bonds in the Urban Redevelopment Fund and notes
payable in the Water and Sewer Fund.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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8. PROPERTY. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2010 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 7,962,602 $ 430,000 $ - $ 8,392,602
Construction in progress 1,989,473 3,729,518 (837,444) 4,881,547
Total 9,952,075 4,159,518 (837,444) 13,274,149
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 16,321,281 35,357 - 16,356,638
Improvements other than buildings 797,038 - - 797,038
Infrastructure 5,932,959 - - 5,932,959
Machinery and equipment 1,092,860 12,199 - 1,105,059
Office equipment 612,326 5,675 - 618,001
Vehicles, including related equipment 738,522 124,115 - 862,637
Furniture and fixtures 1,029,764 28,782 - 1,058,546
Total capital assets being depreciated 26,524,750 206,128 - 26,730,878
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 937,991 408,516 - 1,346,507
Improvements other than buildings 364,053 38,008 - 402,061
Infrastructure 284,084 147,672 - 431,756
Machinery and equipment 745,677 60,104 - 805,781
Office equipment 231,157 55,566 - 286,723
Vehicles, including related equipment 487,981 78,147 - 566,128
Furniture and fixtures 226,202 85,250 - 311,452
Total accumulated depreciation 3,277,145 873,263 - 4,150,408
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 23,247,605 (667,135) - 22,580,470
Governmental capital assets, net $33,199,680 $§ 3492383 $ (837,444) $35,854,619

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

General Government $ 550,054
Public Safety 21,976
Highways and Streets 260,242
Parks and Recreation 38,952
Code Enforcement 2,039
Total depreciation expense § 873,263

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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8.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT — (Continued)

Business-Type Activities

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land

Construction in progress

Total

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Improvements other than buildings
Infrastructure

Vehicles

Furniture and fixtures

Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Improvements other than buildings
Infrastructure

Vehicles

Furniture and fixtures

Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Business-Type Activities capital assets, net

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows:

Water
Sewer

Solid Waste Management

Conference Center
Community Center

Stormwater Management

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

$ 445,603 $ - - $ 445,603
1,116,557 2,584,376 - 3,700,933
1,562,160 2,584,376 - 4,146,536
3,293,119 739,617 - 4,032,736
14,789,181 69,000 - 14,858,181
164,437 - - 164,437
1,464,102 - - 1,464,102
429,481 3,563 - 433,044
1,010,786 98,086 - 1,108,872
21,151,106 910,266 - 22,061,372
503,716 78,189 - 581,905
4,382,284 338,860 - 4,721,144
15,921 5,281 - 21,202
1,103,263 128,798 - 1,232,061
159,448 28,915 - 188,363
552,844 82,736 - 635,580
6,717,476 662,779 - 7.380,255
14,433,630 247,487 - 14,681,117
$ 15,995,790 % 2,831,863 - $ 18,827,653

127,264

302,192

76,393

111,623

13,149

32,158

662,779

Total depreciation expense

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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9.

LONG-TERM DEBT

Changes in Long-Term Debt

The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities reported in the government-wide financial

statements for the year ended December 31, 2010:

Beginning Ending Current
Balance Increases Decreases Balance Portion
Governmental Activities
Accrued Compensated Absences $ 107,680 § 112,498 § (163229) § 56,958 $ 20,000
OPEB Obligation 4972 3,168 (3,168) 4,972 -
Urban Redevelopment
Revenue Bonds 16,690,000 - (455,000) 16,235,000 480,000
Total Governmental-Type
Activity Long-Term Debt $16,802,661 $§ 115666 $ (621397) $§ 16296930 $ 500,000
Business-Type Activities
GEFA Notes Payable $ - $ 1,507,350 % - $ 1507350 $ -
Accrued Compensated Absences 86,241 118,366 (116,456) 88.151 13,446
Total Business-Type Activity
Long-Term Debt $ 86241 §$ 1625716 $ (116456) $ 1,595501 $ 13,446

The City’s General Fund is typically used to liquidate all governmental activity long-term liabilities. However,
proceeds from any asset sales relative to the Urban Redevelopment project will be used to liquidate the related

revenue bond obligation.

The Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund is used to liquidate all of the business-type activity long-term liabilities
except for the accrued compensated absences which are the individual proprietary funds’ responsibility to

liquidate.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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9.

LONG-TERM DEBT - (Continued)

Urban Redevelopment Revenue Bonds -

The City entered into an agreement with Wachovia Bank that provided for the issuance of revenue bonds for the
purchase of land and construction of structures and improvements for the New Town Center. Various bond
issues were used by the City during the purchase and construction phases. Some of the issues were non taxable
while others were taxable issues. All of the remaining outstanding bonds are non taxable. During the year ended
December 31, 2010 the City repaid various bond issues in the amount of $455,000. Amounts outstanding at year
end of $16,235,000 reflect total draw downs to date net of repayments, if any.

Urban Redevelopment Fund long-term liabilities outstanding at year end are as follows:

Series 2005 B Revenue bonds payable to Wachovia Bank,
in the total amount of $7,330,000,
interest at 4.45%, matures 2/1/31 $ 6,940,000

Series 2006 A Revenue bonds payable to Wachovia Bank,
in the total amount of $4,795,000, current
interest at 4.58%, matures 2/1/31 4,550,000

Series 2006 C Revenue bonds payable to Wachovia Bank,
in the total amount of $5,000,000, current

interest at 4.865%, matures 2/1/31 4,745,000
Total $ 16,235,000

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the revenue bonds that have closed are as follows:

Fiscal
Year Principle Interest Total
2011 480,000 737,016 1,217,016
2012 500,000 714,462 1,214,462
2013 520,000 690,979 1,210,979
2014 545,000 666,457 1,211,457
2015 570,000 640,779 1,210,779
2016-2020 3,260,000 2,776,008 6,036,008
2021-2025 4,090,000 1,933,231 6,023,231
2026-2030 5,105,000 878,171 5,983,171
2031 1,165,000 26,860 1,191,860
Totals $16,235000 § 9,063,963 $ 25298,963

Water and Sewer Long-Term Debt —

The City issues revenue bonds and enters into construction note agreements with the Georgia Environmental
Facilities Authority where in both types of debt the government pledges income derived from the acquired or
constructed assets to pay debt service. Amounts outstanding at the end of the current fiscal year related to notes
issued in 2010 to finance construction projects to improve the City’s water distribution facilities. The note was
issued by the Georgia Environmental Facilities Authority in the total amount of $1,761,900. Draw downs from
the note as of December 31, 2010 amounted to $1,507,350. The note bears interest at 3% and will be due in
equal monthly payments over a twenty year period when the loan closes.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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10. DEFERRED REVENUES

Deferred revenues as of December 31, 2010, reported in the Governmental Fund’s balance sheet, consisted of
the following items:

Revenues earned but not received within 60 days after year end:

Fines and forfeitures $ 207,106
Grants 184,735
Total deferred revenues - Governmental Funds $ 391,841

11. RISK MANAGEMENT

The City of Stockbridge is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. The City is a member of the Georgia
Interlocal Risk Management Agency. This membership allows the City to share liability, crime, motor vehicle
and property damage risks.

Coverages are as follows:

Coverage Description — Property:

Buildings and contents — (Blanket) $29.968,560
Automobile physical damage Per Application on file with GIRMA
Coverage Description — Casualty:

Comprehensive general liability $1,000,000
Automobile liability $1,000,000
Errors and omissions (Public Officials) $1,000,000
Employee benefits liability $1.,000,000
Pollution liability $1,000,000
Coverage Description — Crime:

Blanket bond — employees required to be bonded $500,000
Blanket bond — all other employees $500,000
Depositors forgery $500,000
Money and securities — loss inside and outside premises $500,000
Deductible:

All coverages are subject to a per occurrence deductible of $1,000
Coverage Exceptions: none

Coverage Subject to a Retroactive Date:

Public officials, pollution and employee benefits liability coverages are subject to a retroactive date of 5/1/87.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)

42



CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

11.

12.

13.

RISK MANAGEMENT - Continued

Chapter 85 Title 36 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated authorizes Georgia municipalities to form
interlocal risk management agencies. The Georgia Interlocal Risk Management Agency (GIRMA) is a
municipal interlocal risk management agency to function as an unincorporated non-profit instrumentality of its
member municipalities — GIRMA establishes and administers one or more group self insurance funds and a risk
management service to prevent or lessen the incidence and severity of casualty and property losses occurring in
the operation of municipal government.

The basis for estimating the liabilities for unpaid claims is “IBNR” established by an actuary.

During the year ended December 31, 2010, the City paid no claims. The City has not compiled a record of the
claims paid up to the $1,000 deductible for the prior years. The City is not aware of any claims which the City is
liable for (up to the $1,000) which were outstanding and unpaid at December 31, 2010. No provisions have
been made in the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2010 for any estimate of potential
unpaid claims.

Pursuant to Title 34, Chapter 9, Article 5 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, the City of Stockbridge
became a member of the Georgia Municipal Associated Workers’ Compensation Self Insurance Fund. The
liability of the fund to the employees of any employer (City of Stockbridge) is specifically limited to such
obligations as are imposed by applicable state laws against the employer for workers® compensation and / or
employer’s liability.

As part of these risk pools, the City is obligated to pay all contributions and assessments as prescribed by the
pools, to cooperate with the pool’s agents and attorneys, to follow loss reduction procedures established by the
funds and to report as promptly as possible in the funds being required to pay any claim of loss. The City is also
to allow the pool’s agents and attorneys to represent the City in investigation, settlement discussions and all
levels of litigation arising out of any claim made against the City within the scope of loss protection furnished
by the funds.

The funds are to defend and protect the members of the funds against liability or loss as prescribed in the
member government contract and in accordance with the worker’s compensation law of Georgia. The funds are
to pay all costs taxed against members in any legal proceeding defended by the members, all interest accruing
after entry of judgment, and all expenses incurred for investigation, negotiation or defense.

HOTEL / MOTEL TAX

The City levies a 5% hotel/motel tax in accordance with the provisions of OCGA 48-13-51. In order to comply
with the expenditure requirements of this code section, the City remits 40% of the monies collected under this
provision to the Henry County Chamber of Commerce. The following is a summary of the collections and
expenditures for the year ended December 31, 2010:

Total Collected $ 95,008 100%
Amount remitted to the Chamber $ 38,010 40%
POLICE PROTECTION

Henry County provides the City of Stockbridge with police protection by maintaining five full-time police
officers, one lieutenant and a secretary within the city limits of Stockbridge. Prior to 2010 these services were
paid for by the citizens of Stockbridge through property and sales taxes collected by the County and the City
paid the County for additional police services the City may request from time to time. Subsequent to 2009, the
City began to pay the County an agreed upon amount in addition to the amount paid by the citizens of
Stockbridge. For 2010 the agreed upon amount is $300,000 and increases annually up to $500,000 beginning in
2012.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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14.

15.

16.

JOINT VENTURE

Under Georgia law, the City, in conjunction with other cities and counties in the Metro Atlanta area, is a
member of the Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC). Membership in this organization is required by the
Official Code of Georgia Annotated (OCGA) Section 50-8-34, which provides for the organizational structure
of the Commission in Georgia. The ARC Board membership includes the chief elected official of each county,
one representative for all the cities in a member county and 15 citizen representatives. OCGA 50-8-39.1
provides that the member governments are liable for any debts or obligations of the ARC. Separate financial
statements may be obtained from:

Atlanta Regional Commission
3715 Northside Parkway
Building 200, Suite 300
Atlanta, Georgia 30327

LEASE AGREEMENTS

The City leases its solid waste transfer station to Lamar County Regional Solid Waste Management Authority
who subleases to Waste Management. The lease is on a year to year basis. The monthly rental charged by the
City is $1 for each ton of solid waste received at the site. For the year ended December 31, 2010, the City
received $76,022 in rental fees under the terms of the contract. The leased assets cost $36,116 and are reported
net of accumulated depreciation of $22,572 for a net carrying value of $13,544.

The City’s lease agreements, other than the agreement described above, are relatively minor commitments
whereby the City is leasing various pieces of office equipment.

CONTINGENCIES

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustments by grantor agencies,
principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute
a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor
cannot be determined at this time, although the government expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

In 2007 the citizens of Henry County voted to approve a special purpose local option sales tax to help finance
the acquisition and construction of major capital equipment and facilities. In relation to this, the City entered
into an intergovernmental agreement with Henry County and the other cities inside the County whereby Henry
County would issue revenue bonds to finance some of the SPLOST projects in advance of the SPLOST tax
collections. City of Stockbridge received $6,626,500 from the County under this agreement.

The revenue bonds are in the name of Henry County and are not a direct liability of the City of Stockbridge.
However, under the terms of the intergovernmental agreement the County will retain all of the first SPLOST
revenue collections for each year in amounts that will satisfy the annual debt service requirements. The
agreement also requires the City of Stockbridge to pay its share of debt service requirements should the
SPLOST revenue collections not be sufficient to satisfy the debt service requirements under the bond issue.
Management believes the SPLOST revenue collections will be sufficient to satisfy all debt service requirements
under the bond ordinance.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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17. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

Plan Description

The City’s defined benefit pension plan, City of Stockbridge Retirement Plan (SRP), provides retirement,
disability and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. These retirement provisions were established
by an adoption agreement executed by the City Council. SRP is affiliated with the Georgia Municipal
Employees Benefit System (GMEBS), an agent multiple-employer pension plan administered by the Georgia
Municipal Association. The Georgia Municipal Association issues a publicly available financial report on
GMEBS that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be
obtained by writing to Georgia Municipal Association, 201 Pryor Street, Atlanta, Georgia, 30303.

Funding Policy

SRP members are not required to contribute to the plan. The City is required to contribute at an actuarially
determined rate; the current rate for 2010 is 21.58% of annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of
the City are established and may be amended by the GMEBS Board of Trustees.

Annual Pension Cost

For 2010, the City’s annual pension cost of $456,490 for SRP was equal to the City’s required and actual
contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of the January 1, 2009 actuarial valuation using
the projected unit credit actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 7.75% investment rate of
return (net of administrative expenses), and (b) projected salary increases of 3.5% plus age and service based
merit increases. The actuarial value of SRP assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of
short-term volatility in the market value of investments over a ten-year period.

SRP’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized over a 30 year period from 1983 and current
changes in the unfunded actuarial liability over 15 years for actuarial gains and losses, 20 years for plan
provisions and 30 years for actuarial assumptions and cost methods as a level dollar amount. The remaining
period at December 31, 2010 was 10 years. These amortization periods, if applicable, are closed for this plan
year.

Three - Year Trend Information for SRP

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Ending Cost (APC)  Contributed  Obligation
12/31/10 $ 456,490 100% $ -
12/31/09 $ 429,818 100% $ -
12/31/08 $ 344,901 100% $ -

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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17.

18.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN - Continued

Annual Pension Cost — (continued)

Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Valuation Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Date Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
As of (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ( (b-a)/c)
7/172010  $5,007,432  $6,157,553 § 1,150,121 81.3% $ 2,475,607 46.5%
1/1/2009  $3,549,172  $5,272,073 §$ 1,722,901 673% $ 2,115,387 81.4%
1712009  $3.860,238 $4.804,184 $ 943,946 80.4% § 2,227,561 42.4%

Trend Information

Annual trend information required by generally accepted accounting principles is presented on page 49 and
reveals the progress made in accumulating sufficient assets to pay benefits when due.

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

For the year ended December 31, 2009, the City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 45, “Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other than
Pensions”, for certain postemployment life insurance benefits provided by the City. The requirement of this
Statement was implemented prospectively.

Plan Description

The City of Stockbridge OPEB Plan (the Plan) is a single-employer defined benefit life insurance plan
administered by the Georgia Municipal Employees Benefit System (GMEBS). The Plan was adopted and
established by the City Council. The Plan provides postemployment life insurance benefits to eligible retirees of
the City in accordance with the City’s personnel policies. At January 1, 2010, 5 retired employees were eligible
to participate. Inasmuch as the Plan has no assets, reporting an employee benefit trust fund in the accompanying
financial statements is not required nor was a separate or stand-alone report issued.

Funding Policy
The City is financing the post employee benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. Employees / retirees are not required

to contribute to the Plan. For fiscal year 2010, five retirees received benefits under the Plan. The City provided
required contributions of $3,168 toward the annual OPEB costs.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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18. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation

The City’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost is calculated based on the annual required
contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of
GASB 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal
costs each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed
twenty five years. The following table shows the components of the City’s annual OPEB cost for 2010 and

2009:
2009 2010

Annual required contribution $ 5,140 $ 3,168
Interest on net OPEB obligation - -
Adjustment to annual required contribution - -

Annual OPEB Cost 5,140 3,168
Contribution made 168 3,168

Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 4,972 -
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year - 4,972
Net OPEB obligation, end of year $ 4,972 $ 4,972

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB

obligation 2010 and 2009 (first year of implementation), were as follows:

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net

Year OPEB of AOC OPEB
Ending Cost (AOC)  Contributed  Obligation
12/31/09 $ 5,140 3.3% $ 4,972

12/31/10 § 3,168 100.0%  §

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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18. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS - Continued

Funding Status and Funding Progress

As of January 1, 2009, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $48,744, all of which was unfunded. The
covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan was $2,115,387 and the ratio of the
unfunded actuarial accrued liability to the covered payroll was 2.3%.

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability
of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality,
and the life insurance cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual
required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The following required schedule of funding progress,
presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Actuarial UAAL as a
Valuation  Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Date Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
As of Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Jan. 1 (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ( (b-a)/c)
2009 $ - $ 48,744 § 48,744 0.0% $ 2,115,387 2.3%

Plans with fewer than 200 participants are required to have actuarial valuations performed every 3 years. The
January 1, 2009 valuation was the first valuation required.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood
by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and
the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the City and plan members at that point. The methods
and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in
actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets.

In the Plan’s January 1, 2009 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit cost method was used. Basic
assumptions used include a 4% investment rate of return (based on the City’s own investment return). The
Plan’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of payroll on a closed basis.
The remaining amortization period at January 1, 2009 was 25 years. The following assumptions were also used:

Eligibility — Employees are assumed to receive benefits upon retirement. The eligibility requirements for
participation is for employees to retire with 10 years of continuous service immediately prior to retirement who
have a minimum of 20 years of total credit service or disabled with 10 years of service. Dependents are not
eligible for life insurance benefits.

Discount Rate — Based on the historic and expected returns of the City’s short term investment portfolio, a
discount rate of 4% was used. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized on a compound
interest basis over 25 years. The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2009 was 25 years.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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19.

20.

CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The City is in the process of upgrading its water system through a water main replacement project which will
consist of adding / replacing 48,000 linear feet of water mains throughout the City. The project is expected to
cost approximately $2,936,500 and is to be financed through a 60% / 40% loan to grant program offered by the
Georgia Environmental Facilities Authority through its Drinking Water State Revolving Fund. Benefits
received from the City under this program will be federal economic stimulus funds. Total cost incurred for this
project as of December 31, 2010 amounted to approximately $2,832,000. Loan and grant proceeds in the
amount of $2,681,950 had been received by the City as of December 31, 2010.

MAJOR USERS /TAXPAYERS

The ten major customers of the water and sewer system are primarily from various multi-family living facilities,
construction and retail entities. The major users represent approximately 31 percent of the water sales and sewer
charges from the system for the year ended December 31, 2010.

The ten major property owners of the City for fiscal year 2010 represent approximately 11% of the current tax
assessed property value. The City, however, did not levy property taxes for 2010. The ten largest property
owners of the City are comprised of mainly real-estate investment type entities, including multi-family living
facilities and commercial retail facilities.

21. OTHER REQUIRED INDIVIDUAL FUND DISCLOSURES

Generally accepted accounting principles require disclosures, as a part of the combined statements - overview,
of certain information concerning individual funds including:

A) Deficit fund balances or net asset balances of individual funds — As of December 31, 2010, none of the
City’s funds had deficit fund balances.

B) During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010, none of the City’s governmental funds had expenditures
that materially exceeded their respective appropriations nor did any department have any material amounts

of expenditures in excess of appropriations. Material excesses are considered to have occurred if
expenditures exceed appropriations by a factor of over 5 percent and greater than $5,000.

(See Independent Auditor’s Report)
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
ANALYSIS OF PENSION PLAN FUNDING PROGRESS

Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage
Valuation Value of Liability AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Date Assets (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
As of (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
7/1/2010 5,007,432 $ 6,157,553 $ 1,150,121 81.3% § 2,475,607 46.5%
1/1/2009 3,549,172 $ 5,272,073 $ 1,722,901 673% $ 2,115,387 81.4%
1/1/2008 3,860,238 $ 4,804,184 $ 943,946 80.4% § 2,227,561 42.4%
1/1/2007 3,382,177 $ 4,221,556 $ 839,379 80.1% $ 1,959,213 42.8%
1/1/2006 2,940,931 $ 3,068,661 $ 727,730 80.2% $ 1,936,356 37.6%
1/1/2005 2,536,273 $ 3,437,515 $ 901,242 73.8% § 1,600,008 56.3%
1/1/2004 2,175,772 § 3,062,874 $ 887,102 71.0% § 1,484,219 59.8%
1/1/2003 1,870,228 $ 2,666,727 § 796,499 70.1%  $ 1,275,728 62.4%
1/1/2002 1,657,639 $ 2,349,987 § 692,348 70.5% $ 1,008,729 68.6%
1/1/2001 1,413,324 $ 2,060,951 § 647,627 68.6% § 990,389 65.4%
Changes in the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability:
Changes in the Plan's unfunded actuarial accrued liability as of January 1, 2009 follow:
Beginning balance $ 1,722,901
Change due to contribution policy (39,264)
Change due to actuarial gains, losses, and assumptions (533,516)
Ending balance $ 1,150,121
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GENERAL FUND

The general fund of the City is used to account for all financial resources except those
required to be accounted for in another fund.



CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
GENERAL FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

2010 2009
ASSETS
Cash $ 3.137.610 $ 2.163.037
Investments 5.544.129 6.672.356
Receivables-
Accounts 2.284 6.476
Interest 8.808 11.433
Taxes 1,446.668 1.313.674
Fines 248.824 247.219
Due from other funds 29.929 328.715
Prepaid items 87.869 92,510
Total assets $  10.506.121 $  10.835.420
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 281.289 $ 347.111
Duc to other funds 1,539.367 2.264.367
Accrued salaries and wages 20.741 19.033
Accrued police bonds 30.192 33.680
Other accrued expenses 21.307 63.230
Deferred revenues 207.106 214.654
Total liabilitics 2.100,002 2,942,075
Fund balance
Reserved for prepaid items 87.869 92.510
Unreserved 8.318.250 _ 7.800.833
T'otal fund balance 8.406.119 _7.893345
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 10,506,121 $ 10.835.420
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REVENUES
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Fines. fees and forfeitures
Charges for scrvices
Intergovernmental
Interest
Rental income
Other

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government
Public safety
Municipal court
Highways and streets
Parks
Code enforcement
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Fxcess ol revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Disposal of capital assets
Transfers

Total other financing sources (uses):

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA

GENERAL FUND

52

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

(1.628.477)

(1.628.477)

512,774

7.893.345

8.400.119

2010 2009
6.117.592 $  5.667.228
173.644 155.059
775,496 746.086
1.417 4.404
149.214 321.699
66,319 71.543
47.652 - 9.465
733133 6.975.484
1.936.207 1.875.398
472,637 207.439
585.113 467.591
1,723,970 1.622.072
189.200 211.883
71.855 66.172
211101 156310
5.190.083 4,606,865
2.141.251 2.368.619

(6.452.684)

14,346.029

$  7.893.345



REVENUES
Taxes

Property taxes
Real estate transfer tax
Intangible tax
I'ranchise tax
Local option sales tax
Alcohol beverage tax
Occupational tax
Insurance premium tax

Total taxes

Licenses and permits
Business licenses

Fines, fees and forfeitures

Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Intergovernmental
Interest

Rental income
Other

Total revenues

CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES

BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

(With comparative actual amounts for the year ended December 31, 2009)

2010 2009
Final
Budget Actual Variance Actual

$ 1,200 % 31 $ (1.169) -
6,000 5,343 (657) 6.272
30.000 25.396 (4.604) 33.566
1,266,528 1.334.679 68.151 1.243,106
3.419.265 3.130.180 (289.085) 2.759.279
614,241 602,896 (11.345) 574.702
530,160 488,662 (41.498) 504.022
550.000 530.405 (19.595) 546.281
6.417.394 6,117,592 (299.802) 5.667.228
169.200 173.644 4.444 155.059
735.750 775.496 39.746 746.086
6,900 1.417 (5.483) 4.404
270,500 149.214 (121.286) 321.699
62.393 66,319 3.926 71.543
37.627 47,652 10,025 9.465
$ 7,699,764  § 7,331,334 $ (368.430) 6.975.484
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CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010
(With comparative actual amounts for the year ended December 31, 2009)

2010 2009
Final
Budget Actual Variance Actual
EXPENDITURES
Current
General Government
Governing body $ 243384  § 224.907 $ 18.477 149.719
City manager 226,046 174.560 51.486 213.124
Administrative 1,561,682 1.278.179 283.503 1.326,715
Government buildings 286.399 258.561 27.838 185.840
Potal General Government 2.317,511 1.936.207 381,304 1.875.398
Public Safety
Charges for police services 400,000 398,187 1.813 96.063
Other services - 438 (438) 12.931
Salarics and related cost - - - 7.296
Supplies - 50 (50) 8.329
Other costs 80,000 73.962 6.038 82.820
Total Public Safety 480,000 472,637 7.363 207.439
Municipal Court
Salaries and related cost 310,099 309,190 909 232.679
Other serviees 105915 99.081 6.834 65.221
Supplics 14,150 11.822 2.328 31.963
Other cost 173,195 165.020 8.175 137.726
'otal Municipal Court 603.359 585,113 18.246 467.591
Highways and Streets
Salaries and related cost 857.504 868.203 (10.699) 796.784
Other services 491,510 383,469 108.041 359.520
Supplies 501,900 472.298 29.602 465.762
Total Highways and Streets 1,850,914 1,723.970 126,944 1.622.072
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CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2610
(With comparative actual amounts for the year ended December 31, 2009)

2010 2009
Final
Budget Actual Variance Actual
Parks and Recreation
Salarics and related cost $ 130,789 § 127.415 $ 3.374 $ 119.335
Other services 51,500 23.391 28,109 51.191
Supplies 44,280 38,394 5,886 41.357
Total Parks and Recreation 226,569 189,200 37,369 211.883
Code Enforcement
Salaries and related cost 68.870 61.561 7.309 56.594
Other services 4,775 3.987 788 6.221
Supplies 7,525 6.307 1.218 3.357
Total Code Enforcement 81,170 71.855 9.315 66.172
Capital Outlay
General Government 182,337 74.787 107,550 75.759
Public Safety 68,993 - 68,993 27.855
Municipal Court 64.888 39,888 25.000 -
Highways and Streets 266,739 96,426 170.313 52.696
Parks and Recreation 117.000 - 117.000 -
Code Enforcement - - - -
Total Capital Outlay 699,957 211,101 488.856 156.310
Total expenditures $ 6,259,480 $ 5,190,083 $ 1.069.397 $ 4.606.863
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

The Hotel / Motel Tax Fund is used by the City to account for proceeds
from the City’s Hotel / Motel Tax and the required 40% payment to the
Henry County Chamber of Commerce



CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
HOTEL / MOTEL TAX FUND
BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

2010 2009
ASSETS
Receivables-
Taxes $ 8,939 7.366
Accrued interest - -
Total assets $ 8,939 7.366
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 7.952 2,946
Total liabilities 7,952 2.946
Fund balance
Unreserved 987 4.420
Total fund balance 987 4,420
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 8,939 7,366
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CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
HOTEL /MOTEL TAX FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

REVENUES
Taxes

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current-
Printing and binding
Tourism and promotion
Payments to others

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers

Net change in fund balance

Fund Balance -
Beginning

Ending
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2010 2009
95,008 96.394
95,008 96,394
24,095 16.866
38,010 38.381
62,105 55,247
32,903 41.147
(36,336) (45,358)
(3.433) 4.211)
4,420 8,631

987 4.420




CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

The SPLOST Capital Projects Funds are used to account for the acquisition and
construction of major capital facilities that were approved by the voters of Henry County,
Georgia through the special purpose local option sales tax referendum.

The State and Federal Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the acquisition
and construction of major capital facilities, other than those financed by proprietary tunds
and trust funds, that are financed with state and federal financial assistance.

The Urban Redevelopment Capital Projects Fund is used to account for the proceeds
for the issuance of revenue bonds to finance the construction of the Town Center
facilities which is the City’s redevelopment project.



CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
SPLOST I CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

2010 2009
ASSETS
Cash $ 105,032 $ 104,642
Dugc from other funds 1.219 1.219
Total assets $ 106.251 $ 105.861
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ - $ -
Due to other funds - -
Total liabilities - -
Fund balance
Reserved for specified purposes 106,251 105.861
Total fund balance 106.251 105.861
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 106.251 $ 105.861
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CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
SPLOST Il CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Interest
Miscellancous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay -
Road and street improvements
Park improvements
Watcr and sewer

Total expenditures

bxcess of revenues over
{under) cxpenditures

Other financing
sourees {uses)
Settlement / Reimbursement proceeds
Transfers

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in tund balance

Fund Balance -
Beginning

Ending

2010 2009

$ - $ -
390 536
- 718
390 1.254
390 1.254
390 1.254
105.861 104.607
$ 106.251 $ 105.861

59



REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Interest
Miscellancous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay -
Road and street improvements
Water and sewer improvements
Parks and rccreation
Land and buildings

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing
SOUrces (uses)
Settlement/ Reimbursement proceeds
Transfers
Total other financing
sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund Balance -
Beginning

Ending

CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
SPLOST Il CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Prior Current Total to Project
Years Year Date Authorization
$ 7.711,704 § - $ 7.711,704  §$ 7,711,703
199.111 390 199,501 -
718 - 718 -
7.911,533 390 7.911,923 7.711.703
4,068,250 - 4.068.250 4.011.703
2,033.303 - 2.033.303 1.700,000
76.804 - 76.804 200.000
1,702,315 - 1.702.315 1.800.000
7,880,672 - 7.880.672 7.711.703
30.861 390 31.251 -
75.000 - 75.000 -
75,000 - 75.000 -
$ 105,861 390 % 106,251  $ -
105.861
5106251
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CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
SPLOST HI CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

2010 2009
ASSETS
Cash $ 2,422,254 $ 1.626
Investments 871.490 2.397,336
Duc from Henry County - -
Due from other funds - 976.393
Total assets $ 3,293.744 $ 3.375.355
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 96.317 $ 29,598
Due to other funds 7.336 176,623
Total labilities 103,653 206,221
Fund balance
Reserved for specified purposes 3.190.091 3.169,134
Total fund balance 3,190,091 3.169.134
Totat liabilities and fund balance $ 3,293,744 $ 3.375.355
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CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
SPLOST III CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Interest

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay -

Roads, bridges, sidewalks and transportation facilities
Public safety facilities and equipment
Public works facilitics and equipment
Construction and renovation of municipal buildings
FFacilitics, land and public facilities

Debt Service - principal
Construction and renovation of municipal buildings

Total expenditures

Lxcess of revenues over
(under) expenditures
Other financing
sources (uses)
Transfers

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund Balance -
Beginning

Ending

2010 2009

$ 1,560,824 1.010,556
9,031 32.202

1,569,855 1,042.758

17.005 296.387

1,380,935 309.838

97.827 598.483

53.131 632,129

- 233.755

- 1,900.000

1,548,898 3.970,592
20,957 (2.927.834)
20,957 (2,927.834)

3,169,134 6,096.968

$ 3,190,091 3.169.134
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CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
SPLOST 111 CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Prior Current Total to Project
Years Year Date Authorization
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ 9.586,015 $ 1,560,824 $ 11.146.839 § 32.857.500
Interest 37,192 9.031 46,223 -
Total revenues 9.,623.207 1,569,855 11,193.062 32,857.500
EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay / Debt Service
Roads. bridges, sidewalks and transportation facilities 807,178 17,005 824,183 3.060.000
Public safety facilities and equipment 829.389 1.380.,935 2.210.324 2.000.000
Public works facilities and equipment 2,230,752 97.827 2.328.579 17.097.500
Construction and renovation of municipal buildings 2.586,754 53.131 2.639.885 10.700.000
Total expenditures 6,454,073 1,548.898 8,002.971 32.857.500
Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures 3.169.134 20.957 3,190.091 -
Other financing
sources (uses)
Transters - - - -
Total other financing
sources (uses) - - - -
Net change in fund balance $ 3,169,134 20,957 § 3,190,091 § -
Fund Balance -
Beginning 3.169.134
Ending $ 3,190,091
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CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
STATE AND FEDERAL GRANTS CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31,2010 AND 2009

2010 2009
ASSETS
Cash i $ 553,089 $ 573,063
Grant receivable 267,721 -
Total assets $ 820.810 $ 573.063
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 221.927 $ 19,392
Deferred grant revenue 184.735 -
Due to other funds 500 500
Total liabilities 407,162 19.892
Fund balance
Uinreserved 413,648 553,171
Total fund balance 413,648 553,171
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 820,810 $ 573.063
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REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Interest

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capital Outlay -
Highways and streets

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing

sources (uses)
Transfers

Net change in fund balance

Fund Balance -
Beginning

Ending

CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA

STATE AND FEDERAL CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

2010 2009
Budget Actual Variance Actual
$ 1,560,560 $ 239,688 $ (1,320,872 $ -

2,500 1,989 (511.00) 2,776

1,563,060 241,677 (1,321,383) 2,776
2,280,700 608,366 1,672,334 111,398
2,280,700 608,366 1,672,334 111,398
(717,640) (366,689) 350,951 (108,622)
717,640 227,166 (490,474) 89,386
(139,523) (139,523) (19,236)

553,171 553.171 - 572,407

$ 553,171 $ 413,648 $ (139,523) 8§ 553,171
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CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
URBAN REDEVELOPMENT FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET

DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

2010 2009
ASSETS
Cash $ - -
Receivables -

Duc from contractors - -
Interest - -
Due from other funds - 318.405
Due from property owners - 587.000

Restricted Assets -
Cash 181.323 1,302,239
Total assets $ 181,323 2,207,644
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 113,354 -
Due to other funds 186 152,092
Deposits - -
Total liabilities 113,540 152,092
Fund balance
Reserved for capital outlay 67,783 2.055.552
Total fund balance 67.783 2,055,552
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 181,323 2.207.644
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CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
URBAN REDEVELOPMENT FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

REVENUES

Interest
Reimbursements / settlements

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current -
Urban Redevelopment -
Protessional fees
Capital Outlay -
City Center
Municipal Court
Debt Service -
Principal
Interest
Bond issuance cost

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing
sources (usces)
Transfers
[Land sales / reductions
Issuance of debt
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance

Fund Balance -
Beginning

Inding

2010 2009

$ 3.980 3.322

64.604 -
68,584 3.322
51,634 19.852
430,000 3.556.352
1.574.719 163.157
455.000 4.870,014
758.539 883.423
3,269.892 9.492,798

(3.201.308)

(9.489.476)

1.213.539 5.671.097

- 3,33().‘;88

1,213.539 9.011,085
(1.987.769) (478.391)
2,055,552 2.533.943

$ 67.783 2,055,552
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CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
URBAN REDEVELOPMENT FUND
COMPARATIVE SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Prior Current Total to Project
Years Year Date Authorization
REVENUES
Rents $ 7,656 $ - $ 7,656 $ 7.000
Interest 800,839 3,980 804,819 275,500
Reimbursements 25,792 64,604 90,396 -
Total revenues 834,287 68,584 902,871 282,500
EXPENDITURES
Current -
Administrative 179,543 51,634 231,177 4,775,949
Capital Outlay -
Land, buildings and furnishings 20,676,142 2,004,719 22,680,861 28.,669.882
Debt Service -
Principal 4,870,014 455,000 5,325,014 -
Interest 2,906,205 758,539 3,664,744 2,646,669
Bond issuance cost 353,451 - 353,451 -
Total expenditures 28,985,355 3,269,892 32,255,247 36,092,500
Excess of revenues over
(under) expenditures (28,151,068) (3.201,308) (31,352,376) (35.,810,000)
Other financing
sources (uscs)
Transfers 5,671,106 1,213,539 6,884,645 -
Land sales 1,075,500 - 1,075,500 -
Issuance of debt 23,460,014 - 23,460,014 35,810,000
Total other financing
sources (uses) 30,206,620 1,213,539 31,420,159 35,810,000
Net change in fund balance $ 2,055,552 (1,987,769) $ 67,783 $ -
Fund Balance -
Beginning 2,055,552
Ending $ 67,783
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PERMANENT FUND

Permanent funds are used to report resources that are legally restricted to the extent that
only earnings, not principal, may be used for purposes that support the reporting
government’s programs.

Perpetual Care Permanent Fund is used to account for principal trust amounts received
and related interest income. The interest portion of the trust can be used to maintain the
community cemetery.



CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
CEMETERY PERPETUAL CARE PERMANENT FUND
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

ASSETS 2010 2009
[nvestment $ 11,023 $ 10.741
Accrued interest receivable 48 46
Total assets $ 11,071 L,-__., __10.787

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilitics $ - $ -

Fund balancc

Reserved for perpetual care 11.071 10787
Total fund balance 11.071 10.787
Total liabilities and fund balance $ 11.07] $ 10,787
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COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

REVENUES

Investment carnings

EXPENDITURES

Other

Net change in fund balance

Fund balancc. beginning

Fund balance, ending

CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
CEMETERY PERPETUAL CARE PERMANENT FUND

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

70

2010

2009

284

284

10,787

11.071

‘ o

3006

$

360

10,421

10.787



CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE--BUDGET (GAAP BASIS) AND ACTUAL
CEMETERY PERPETUAL CARE PERMANENT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

BUDGET VARIANCE
AMOUNTS WITH FINAL
ORIGINAL FINAL ACTUAL BUDGET
REVENUES
Interest $ 350 $ 350 $ 284 $ (66)
Miscellaneous - - - -
Total Revenues 350 350 284 (66)
EXPENDITURES
Current-
Cemetery
Maintenance 350 350 - 350
Total Expenditures 350 350 - 350
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures - - 284 284
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers - - - -
Total - - - .
Net Change in Fund Balances - - 284 284
Fund Balance - Beginning of year 10,787 10,787 10,787 -
Fund Balance - End of year $ 10,787 $ 10,787 $ 11,071 $ 284

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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ENTERPRISE FUNDS

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises. The funds are self-supporting in nature

where the costs, including depreciation, of providing goods or services to the general
public on a continuing basis are financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

The Water and Sewer Fund is used to account for activities connected with the
development, operation and maintenance of water and sewer in the City of Stockbridge
and parts of Henry County.

The Solid Waste Management Fund is used to account for activities connected with the
collection and disposal of solid waste within the City ot Stockbridge. The fund was
created in 2003 in order to comply with the State of Georgia Financial Reporting
Requirements.

The Conference Center Fund is used to account for activities related to the Merle
Manders Conference Center. The year ended December 31, 2003 was the first full year of
operations.

The Community Center Fund is used to account for activities related to the Ted
Strickland Community Center. The construction of the Center was completed during
2010 and the Center opened in May 2010.

The Stormwater Management Fund is used to account for activities related to solving
existing flooding problems and prevent future flood damage, maintaining and improving
the system of stormwater management infrastructure and preserving and protecting the
beneficial functions of natural drainage systems.



CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
WATER AND SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

2010 2009
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash $ 231,481 $ 398,276
Investments 58,000 58,000
Receivables-
Accounts (net) 266,829 213,434
Unbilled sales 95,449 99,546
Due from other funds 590,191 -
Inventory 139.870 117,684
Restricted assets -
Cash 412,499 -
Investments - -
Total current assets 1,794,319 886,940
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets
Land 416,962 416,962
Improvements other than buildings 14,801,065 14,732,065
Vehicles 345,295 345,295
Furniture and equipment 20,646 20,646
Machinery and equipment 879,896 800,461
Construction in progress 3,700,933 1,116,557
Accumulated depreciation (3.506,192) _ (5,076,736)
Capital assets (net of depreciation) 14,658,605 12,355,250
Other assets
Deferred loan cost, net of amortization of $-0- 58,730 - -
Total deferred charges 58,730 -
Total noncurrent assets 14,717,335 _ 12,355.250
Total assets 16,511,654 13,242,190
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CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
WATER AND SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

2010 2009
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Trade 40,584 $ 161,018
Construction 241,180 -
Customer deposits 86,726 81,008
Accrued compensated absences 5,000 5,000
Accrued salaries 12,743 9,987
Accrued interest 15315 o -
Total current liabilities 401,548 257013
Noncurrent liabilities
Notes payable 1,507,350 -
Accrued compensated absences 36,213 31,270
Total noncurrent liabilities 1,543,563 - 31,270
Total liabilities 1,945,111 288,283
Net Assets
Investments in capital assets, net of related debt 13,151,255 12,355,250
Restricted for capital outlay 412,499 -
Unrestricted 1,002,789 598,657
Total Net Assets 14,566,543 $ 12,953,907

DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009
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CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
WATER AND SEWER FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

2010 2009
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services -
Water sales $ 1,405,545 $ 1,339,083
Sewer charges 1,257,862 1,181,483
Penalties and reconnect fees 71,531 106,385
Miscellaneous 21,061 12,800
Total operating revenues 2,755,999 - 2,639,751
OPERATING EXPENSES
Water Department-
Purchase of product 502,958 547,706
Salaries and related cost 354,520 347,930
Professional services 25,192 24,366
Supplies and materials 47,738 70,893
Repairs and maintenance 89,283 65,555
Jtilities 33,728 29,909
Depreciation and amortization 127,264 131.026
Other 46,368 39,531
Sewer Department-
Salaries and related cost 585,437 549,194
Professional services 50,074 23,730
Supplies and materials 158,797 106,301
Repairs and maintenance 87.029 77.028
Utilities 170,268 154,951
Depreciation and amortization 302,192 299721
Other 84,129 83,783
Total operating expenses 2,664,977 o 2,551,624
Operating income (loss) 91,022 88,127
Non-operating revenues and (expenses)
Interest earned 2,727 9,107
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of capital assets - -
Interest expense - (151.170)
Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 2,727 (142,063)
Income before transfers and capital contributions 93,749 (53,936)
Capital contributions -
Water - Developers 2,165 21,524
Water - Federal grant 1,174,600 -
Sewer - Developers 1,848 20,568
Sewer - SPLOST 97,827 598,483
Transfers 242,447 2,793,318
Change in net assets 1,612,636 3,388,957
NET ASSETS - BEGINNING 12,953,907 9,564,950
NET ASSETS - ENDING $ 14,566,543 $ 12,953,907
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CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
WATER AND SEWER FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers and users
Cash paid to suppliers for goods
Cash paid to employees
Net cash provided from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received
Purchase of investments
Redemption of investments

Net cash from investing activities

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Transfers
Change in due to/from other funds
Net cash flows from non-capital
financing activities

Cash flows from capital financing activities:
Proceeds from long term debt
Loan costs
Capital contributions
Purchase / construction of capital assets
Proceeds from long term debt

Net cash flows from capital financing activities

Net cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning

Cash and cash equivalents - ending

75

2010 2009
2,712,419 $ 2,646,284
(1,732,711) (1,390,490)
(637,731) (616,512)
341,977 639,282

2,727 9,107
- 230,155
2,727 239.262
242,447 2,793,318
(590,191) -
(347,744) 2,793,318
- (3,017.648)
(58,730) (177,065)
1,178,613 51,002
(2,378.,489) (368.983)
1,507,350 -
248,744 (3,512,604)
245,704 159,258
398,276 239,018
643,980 $ 398.276




CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
WATER AND SEWER FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2010 2009
Operating income (loss) $ 91,022 $ 88.127
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 429,456 430,747
(Increase) decrease in receivables (49,298) 1,869
(Increase) decrease in inventory (22,186) (4,794)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (120,434) 115.421
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits 5,718 4.664
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities 7,699 3,248
Total adjustments 250,955 551,155
Net cash from operating activities $ 341,977 $ 639,282
Non-cash transactions -
Increase (decrease) in fair value of investments 3 - $ -
Construction of water and sewer system
improvements paid for by the SPLOST Capital
Projects Fund and considered capital
contributions by the Water and Sewer Fund $ 97,827 $ 398,483
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CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

ASSETS
Current assets
Receivables, net -
Accounts
Rents
Due from other funds
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Capital assets

Improvements other than buildings

Vehicles

Machinery and equipment

Accumulated depreciation
Capital assets (net of depreciation)
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries and wages
Deferred revenues

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Accrued compensated absences

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Investment in capital assets - net of related debt
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

2010 2009
$ 69,115 68.374
6,869 8.082
948,457 931.786
1,024,441 1,008,242
36,116 36.116
950,060 950.060
13.536 13.536
(813.895) (737.502)
185,817 262,210
185,817 262.210
1,210,258 1,270,452
3418 6.367
2.000 2.000
5,280 5.063
1,006,416 931.786
1.017,114 945,216
11,570 16.445
1,028,684 961,661
185,817 262,210
(4.243) 46.58]
$ 181,574 308.791
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CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA

SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Solid waste collection -
Personnel services and benefits
Supplies
Repairs and maintenance
Depreciation
Other

Solid waste disposal -
Landfill fees

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Non-operating revenues and (expenses)

Rental income

Total non-operating revenues (expenscs)
Income before transfers

Transfers

Change in net assets

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING

NET ASSETS - ENDING
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2010 2009

$ 1,076,149 $  879.831
1,076,149 879,831
585.728 627.936

88,798 106,841

54,567 49.939

76,393 88.452

12.859 64.183

148,144 151,355

966,489 1,088,706
109,660 (208.875)

76,022 87.564

. 76,022 87564
185,682 (121311)
(312,899) (11,233)
(127.217) (132.544)

308,791 441,335

$ 181,574 $ 308,791



CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers and users
Cash paid to suppliers for goods
Cash paid to employees
Net cash provided from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Other

Net cash from investing activities

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:

Transfers
Increase in due from other funds

Net cash flows from non-capital
financing activities

Cash flows from capital financing activities:
Purchase of capital assets
Net cash flows from capital
financing activities
Net cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning

Cash and cash equivalents - ending
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2010 2009
$ 1.227.273 $ 1.935.897
(560.240) (643.912)
(337.463) (348.960)
329.570 943,019
(312.899) (11,233
(16.671) (931,786)
(329,570) (943.019)



CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2010 2009
Operating income (loss) $ 109,660 $ (208.875)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
nct cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 76,393 88,452
(Increase) decrease in receivables 472 36.716
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (2,949) 5.476
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities (4,658) 1,900
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue 74,630 931,786
Rental income 76,022 87,564
Total adjustments 219,910 1.151.894
Net cash from operating activities $ 329,570 $ 943,019
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CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
CONFERENCE CENTER FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

ASSETS

Current assets

Rent receivable
Due from General Fund

Total Current assets

Noncurrent assets
Capital assets
Land
Buildings and improvements
Improvements other than buildings
Furniture and equipment
Machinery and equipment
Accumulated depreciation
Capital assets (net of depreciation)

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Trade
Custorer deposits
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Accrued compensated absences

Total liabilities
NET ASSETS

Investment in capital asscts - net of related debt
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

2010 2009
$ 5.871 2,000
5,871 2,000
28.641 28.641
3.293.119 3.293.119
21,000 21,000
408.835 408.835
179,026 174,336
(877.012) (765.389)
3.053.609 3.160.542
3,053.609 3.160.542
3.059.480 3.162.542
3.338 462
14.021 26.610
1,000 1.000
3,281 2916
21,640 30.988
10.691 10.295
32,331 41,283
3.053.609 3.160.542
(26.460) (39.283)
$ 3.027.149 3.121.259
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CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA

CONFERENCE CENTER FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services

Total operating revenucs

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel services and benefits
Supplies
Repairs and maintenance
Utilities
Depreciation and amortization
Other

Total operating expenscs

Operating income (loss)

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

Non-operating revenues and (expenses)

Interest income

Income before transfers and capital contributions

Iransfers
Change in net assets
NET ASSETS - BEGINNING

NET ASSETS - ENDING
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2010 2009

$ 174.984 $ 121,784
174.984 121,784

237.741 271,397

17,111 17.394

94,223 93,033

27.384 24.818

111,623 109,022

30.135 33.681

518.217 549.345
(343.233) (427.561)
(343.233) (427.561)

249,123 ) 324.093
(94.110) (103.468)
3.121.259 3.224.727

$ 3,027,149 $ 3.121.259



CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
CONFERENCE CENTER FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

2010 2009
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers and users $ 158,524 $ 137.252
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services (224.925) (236.624)
Cash paid to employecs (178.032) o (197,930)
Net cash from operating activities (244.433) (297.302)

Cash flows from investing activities: - -
Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:

Transfers 249.123 324.093
Change in due to/from other funds - -

Net cash flows from non-capital financing activities 249.123 324.093
Cash flows from capital financing activities:
Purchase / construction of capital assets (4.690) (26,791)
Net cash flows from capital financing activities (4.690) (269N
Net cash flows - -
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning - -

Cash and cash equivalents - ending $ - $ -
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CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
CONFERENCE CENTER FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2010 2009
Operating income (loss) $ (343.233) $ (427.561)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 111.623 109.022
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (3.871) -
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 2.876 -
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits (12.589) 15,468
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities 761 5.769
Total adjustments 98.800 130.259
Net cash from operating activities $ (244.433) $ (297.302)
Non-cash transactions - $ - $ -
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CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
COMMUNITY CENTER FUND
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31,2010

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash
Rents receivable
Due from other funds

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Capital assets
Buildings
Furniture and fixtures
Machinery and equipment
Accumulated depreciation

Capital assets (net of depreciation)

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued compensated absences
Accrued salaries and wages
Customer deposits

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities

Accrued compensated absences

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Investment in capital assets - net of related debt
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets
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2010

10,933

10,933

739,617
3,563
4,500

(13,149)

734,531

734,531

745,464

186
3,446

3,350
6,982

6,982

734,531
3,951

738,482



CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
COMMUNITY CENTER FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

OPERATING REVENUES
Rentals ’

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel services and benefits
Supplies

Repairs and maintenance
Depreciation

Other

Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Non-operating revenues and (expenses)
Miscellaneous

Total non-operating revenues (expenses)

Income before transfers

Capital contributions - SPLOST
Transfers

Change in net assets

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING

NET ASSETS - ENDING

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
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2010

24,281
24,281

34,915
10,313
9,769
13,149
2,707

70,853

(46,572)

(46,572)

739,617
45,437

738,482

738,482



CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
COMMUNITY CENTER FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers and users
Cash paid to suppliers for goods
Cash paid to employees

Net cash provided from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Other

Net cash from investing activities

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Transfers
Increase in due from other funds

Net cash flows from non-capital
financing activities

Cash flows from capital financing activities:
Purchase of capital assets
Net cash flows from capital

financing activities

Net cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning

Cash and cash equivalents - ending
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2010

27,631
(33,762)
(20,310)
(26,441)

45,437

45,437

(8,063)

(8,063)

10,933

10,933



CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
COMMUNITY CENTER FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED

BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
2010
Operating income (loss) $ (46,572)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 13,149
(Increase) decrease in receivables -
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 186
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities 3,446
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits 3,350
Total adjustments 20,131
Net cash from operating activities $ (26,441)
Non-cash transactions -
Construction of building improvements
paid for by the SPLOST Capital Projects
Fund and considered capital contributions
by the Community Center Fund $ 739,617
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CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

DECEMBER 31,2010 AND 2009

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash
Receivables, net -
Accounts
Due from other funds

Total current assets

Capital Assets
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Automotive equipment
Accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets (net of depreciation)
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Accrued expenses -
Accrued compensated absences
Salaries and wages

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Accrued compensated absences

Total liabilities
NET ASSETS

Investment in capital assets - net of related debt
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets
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2010 2009
$ 537,138 409.887
97,798 93.234
- 37,064
634,936 540,185
164,437 164,437
31914 22,453
168,747 168.747
(170.007) (137.849)
195,091 217,788
195,091 217,788
830,027 757,973
27,207 -
22,407 -
2,000 2,000
2,146 2.016
53,760 4,016
16.231 18.231
69.991 22.247
195,091 217,788
564,945 517,938
$ 760,036 735.726




OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits
Professional fees
Supplies
Repairs and maintenance
Depreciation
Refunds

Total operating expenses

Operating income (l1oss)

CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

Non-operating revenues and (expenses)

Interest income
Income before transters
Transfers

Change in net assets

NET ASSETS - BEGINNING

NET ASSETS - ENDING

2010 2009

$ 491,631 $ 487.815
491,631 487815

181,365 188,665

185,631 178,670

22,627 22,355

50,191 52,438

32,158 32,199

471.972 474327

19.659 13.488

4,651 9,683

24,310 23.171

24,310 23.171

735,726 712,555

$ 760,036 $ 735.726
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CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers and users
Cash paid to suppliers for goods
Cash paid to employees

Net cash provided from operating activitics

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest income

Net cash from investing activities

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:

fncrease in due from other funds

Net cash flows from non-capital
financing activitics

Cash flows from capital financing activities:
Purchase of capital assets

Net cash [lows from capital
financing activities

Net cash flows
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning

Cash and cash equivalents - ending
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2010 2009
$ 487,067 $ 460.463
(289.605) (309.000)
(124.872) (130.570)
72,590 20.893
4,651 B 9.684
4,651 9.684
59.471 379.310
59.471 379310
(9.461) L -
(9.461) -
127,251 409.887
409,887 o
$ 537,138 $ 409,887



CITY OF STOCKBRIDGE, GEORGIA
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2010 2009
Operating income (loss) $ 19,659 $ 13,488
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 32,158 32.199
(Increase) decrease in receivables (4,564) (27,352
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 27.207 -
Increase (decrease) in accrued labilitics (1,870) 2.558
Total adjustments 52,931 _ 7,405
Net cash from operating activities $ 72,590 $ 20,893
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Stockbridge's comprehensive annual financial report

presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the
financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says
about the City's overall financial health.

Contents

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the
City's financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's most
significant local revenue sources.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability
of the City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue
additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader

understand the environment within which the City's financial activities take place.

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the City's financial report relates to the
services the City provides and the activities it performs.

Except where noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the City of Stockbridge's
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. The City implemented GASB Statement
34 in 2004; schedules presenting government-wide information include information beginning that year.

93-99

100-106

107-109

110-111

112-114



This page has been intentionally left blank.



v0L'8YZ LSS S9E°1GELYS 16G°912'9v$ 09/'9¢2'S€$ 0L.'62e2es 1 19'G6/ 923 118'G6¥'22$
180°LZS0} L9G'¥0S'6 196'80€'91L 880°'600°CL 108°128°01 08G5'959'8 GLL'102'2
G69°L8.L°C GB0'6EQ'Y 9v9'062'9 SEY'YLT'T €eL'/18'e €0L'2i0' vLL'LLL'L
726'6£6'9€$ 60.°'208'€ES y8e'LLO'ETS LET'E10'02$ 9/1'989°LL$ 826'180'9L$ 785 LLLvLS
v8L'€/2'61$ €89'611°21$ LOS'EVB'ELS GG6°209'Z1$ 2€0'286°L 1S £08'€80°LL$ 101'G9€'6$
286'0pS L €68'¢ClL 90Z'/€2'L €20'PSL°L €91'898 9z9'v09 £8Y'6€G
66¥'CLY - 059'8. Le¥'v8 821°.8 L8E'0G 1L 6GE'C6
€0€'02E'LLS 06.'G66'SLS LL2'229°21$ G6Y'69€'L1$ 169'920°L1$ 96.°8ZE'0L$ 662'2¢L'8%
0Z6'v.6°LES 289'L€20ES ¥20'€L2'2ES 508'829'¢¢$ 8.9'¢¥€'0Z$ 808'1/9°GLS 0LL0EL'ELS
G01°086'8 899'08€'8 GGE'LL0'GL Go0'sS8'LL 8€9°€S6'6 vG6'160'8 Z€9'199°9
961'6.¢'e$ G60'6€0'Y 966'L12'9 866'62L'¢C GGS'0EL’E 2TL'998°L GGL'€80°L
619'619'61$ 6L6°LLELLS €.9'686°01$ grL'ev9'ss G8Y'659'9% ZeL'e6L'ss £2£'98€'G$
0i0¢ 00¢ 8007 1002 9002 002 ¥002

(Bununoooe Jo siseq |enJode)
siea) [eosl{ uaAag ise
juauodwion Aqg sjossy 19N

e1bioan ‘abpLgyo0ls 30 A

sjasse jau Juawuianob Alewud ejo g
pajouisaiun
pajoulsay
199p paje|al JO 19U ‘slasse [elded Ul pajsoAu|
wawuianob Aewid

S19SSE Jau saflialjoe adA)-ssauisng [ejo |
pajoLsalun
pajoLisay
199p paie|al JO Jou ‘sjasse [elideo ul pajSaaU|
saljAnoe adAl-ssauisng

S]9SSE Jau SaIIAIOE [elUBLWIUIaACE je10 ]
palousalun
pajoysay
199p pale|al Jo 1au ‘sjesse |eldeo Ul pajsanu|
SSNIAOR |RIUSWILIBACD

93



2896888 $ 0£6952'9 $ €€8'685G1 ¢ 995222S § v10'€29'L yiy'6099 $ LIETZIL9 §
6/9'21L'G 1£8°/9C' Y 91960 ¥ 068'/66'E Lis'ozl'e GEC'LYY'E L¥l'9ge'e
€L9'8LL') Z60'LS 009'L8 ¥19'6S 06€°LS1 9.8 LLE £06'9¥Z
L9’ L6V Si8'L8y 8Ye'9sYy cLz'esy ZeY'66E 091 8¢ v0L'Z0v
L8c've - - - - - -
y86'vLL v8L'LTi 919'Z61 £19'69¢ S61'8¢eC Gs0'Gle Ley'LLT
LLL'ZSLE GBE'L96 82¢€'058 L€6°G18 pST'e6L 9€.'55. 81289
829'¢6C’L 9.0'L¥e’L Pee'SYL'L 60¥ LI 855'000'L GLE 268 696°G6.L
LLETIV'L Gl9'g6€E'L 098'69¢'L YOp'LSC L rLiLELL 680'61L0'L 9/2'066
€002Z}1}'E £60'686'L 16968V oL/ vZZ'L EPr'968'€ 6£2'896'C ¥91'9//.°C
9vz'se6’l 955'010°} €10'66L0L 96€£'€2C EVL'168C veLIYC'T 816'€/0C
S¥8'C v.€'8C LLLEVL - - - -
v09'v9 - - - - 90.L'¢ -
9000} £68'6 £10'6 1 ZAR°) GzZL'9 900'S -
620°L oSy 08L'zy - - - -
88Y'6.L €L0'9TL 212'y88 809'.8. 9vs'sie £06°L5S 9LL'9vs
58.292 $ [yl $ €E09lZ  $ 98Z'/0z $ 6z0'e8l 0€8'6S1 $ 0Lv'9SL ¢
9€02LELL $ 6086211 § 68.'c8¥'LLS 95/°€.6'6 § 266'2L0'6 Le8'c66’L $ Gl5'89g'L $
805269’y 268y S¥9'06L'y 059'66S'v 108'02E'Y 285'756'E 0.¥'6lS'E
ZiB'LLY 128y Stl'yLy EYZ'IBE €66°9L€ LLp'SYL y68'¥9lL
£68°0L - - - - - -
112'81§ Sre'6Ys 169'e5S 625'€95 9Lz'zvs €€1'v8Y €0L'0Er
681'996 90.°880'} 601°2€L°L 8G.'890'L 961'/26 6Y6°L.8 26.'€69
9z6'LEV') €6Z'0.€'} 6ZL'vze'L 9r0's8Z'L €88°'/61'L Glo'08i'L G86'800°}
160°222'} Los'zee’t Llo'boe’l ¥/0'1L0€"L 6l5'9ee’) rL8'e9z’} 969122’}
825'6.9'9 LEL'E8P'Q v¥1L'€69°9 901 v.E'S g8l ZSL'Y 672 L¥0 Y Sr0'6¥8'E
0l8'svL ¥.0'658 vi8'ZZ6 6EY'LEB 0L9'}LP 009'6€ -
z8L'vL €82'89 v.6'68 v88'28 00129 £80°¢ v.5°C
299'8S 6ZL'€S1 0LL'\ ¥ §/8°€8 GS0'ee €50'¥S -
- - - - - 650'9 L.€'8
vv6'822 0LL's¥e 991702 191 vt 1BETIT 8ve'Llg ¥90'G81
BSY'LL6'L ZSE'€80'C ¥€6'986'C ¥2G'995'L 0ZE0L9'L 109°2€9'L 6.0'6LY'L
192'080'} S99°L.9 08Z'6%9 658'6VS 661 vvS 122’89y Zro'eoy
0l9'G16C $ vor'oor'z $ 9/1's6LL $ yLE'696'L $ yyy'elg’l ¥82'029't $ 60€29L') $
010z 6002 8002 1002 9002 5002 ¥ooz

{Buunosoe Jo siseq jeniode)
Sieaj [eos]d UdASS Ise]
S}9sSY JoN ut sebueyn
161039 ‘abpLg®2031g Jo AUD

sonuanal welboud swulanoh Arewud |Bjo)
sanuanal welboid seniaijoe adAl-sssuisng [e10 1
suolNqLILOD pue sjueld jeyde)
suoRnNgLIuoD pue sjuel Bunesdsdo
JusWwabeUBW [SIEMULIOIS
18JUB ABUNWWoD)
J31US0 20URIBU0Y
S1SEM pIjOS
oMeg
191.AA
saoIA8s U0} sabley)
‘safjialoe adAl-ssauisng
sanuanas welbold safialoe [elusuIan0b jejo |
suoiNgLiuod pue sjuelb [eyded
suoinqgLiuos pue sjuelb Bunesedo
JUBWSIoJUS BPC)
Juswdo@aapal uegin
UONE3I08) pUB SHed
sy9aus pue shkemybiy
SHNoO pue Algyes olgnd
JuswuIsA0b |eijsuso
:890IAu8S Jo) sebley)
'SBIAIOR |BJUBWIUISA0SE)
sanuaAay weiboid

sasuadxa awuasob Atewud [Bj0 1
sasuadxe sailAnoe adAj-ssauisng (B0
juswabeuew Jajemuiols
J81u8d Ajunwiwo)
JBJUB0 80UIBU0YD
8jsem pljog
1amag
Joyepn
‘saniAnoe adAl-ssauisng
sasuadxs saljiAloe [ejuswiwanch [ejo|
109p wJal-Buol uo 1salsiu|
JUSWSIo4US BpOY
Juswdoaaapal ueqin
Areuqr
UOHEa1031 pue S)led
sjoau}s pue shemybiH
SHN0D pue Ajgjes dlignd
JUBWIUISAOS |BIBUSD
‘SBIJIAIOR |BJUSWUIOA0S)
sasuadxg

94



668768 §  v//IWELL S 1£8'0/6'0L$  0S0'0z6C § 6600/5S $ 00865Z¥ § ZI6v90T $
101512 9119/ zio'see’l £26'529 622'968 20.'8LL) 8267 LS
gez'erLl (2ve'Lv0'2) 612'S£9'6 12)'v62'C 0/8°1L9¥ 860°LPS'Z ¥86'6¥S'S
€696/£9 § €61'9/1'9 § /88989 §  OvZ 1.9, $  /1/0020. $§  /GL¥P9G $  9LLlZES §
068901 15¥'ceL’s 1210802 A G9b'Z6Y | 6¥0°0£0'C 162’869
26519071 199'v0/°¢ 1S/°610T v6L 11271 £Y0'6.Y'L 6/£100C 001269
- - - - £09 68971 -
8lE'L 06.'8} 0LE'v) 626'Gl 618'C1 186°L 168G
£9/°01£6G 20.°25v'2 999'8£8' ) 219'125°S 801719 598229t
(zss'190'1) (199'%02°¢) (15.°61072) v6.°112'1) (ev0'6lt')) (62€72002) (00t'269)
66€'Gl $98'glL £88° 162'2 G80'2. 162'2 08562
89¥'SG L 668°09¢ 1£€'925 680'280°'} 616'06S 1Zv'sL) £5¥'98
- - 190'05 000°29 ¥80'8 - -
£/€'S 208'8 660'v1 $90'92 S6¥'0¢ G6.'GE 181'€s
800'S6 ¥6€'96 199604 G£0°22) BEL'6LL 6LL'10) LOE'6Z1
8vv'685 6v1'88S £22'709 1¥8'865 180'655 861'c2S 0ze'L8S
S0P'0ES 18Z'975 GS¥'LSS ¥55°8¢S 962'915 eLp'cey ¥19'85¥
656'06% 220'v05 60¢'995 Zv8LLS £50'65Y 268'L0Y 128'1ve
08L'ogl'e 6.2'65.'C Breocl'e 00l '6e€'E §85'06€'c SY8'v98'C 826'v/S'C
6LO'VEE’L 90L'€ve’) £85'652°1L £95'622'L CTA T 126°L16 829'G10°L
96£'62 $¢  995'¢ce $ ISV ¢ So¥'9. ¢ 06V'66 $ 998'voL ¢  iv'00L $
(bse'esy'z) ¢ (6/€7110°G) § vr0'20i'y $ (06L°162'P) ¢ (g/6'evp’l)  § (uge'vee’l) § (#OZ'9ST'L)S
121°580°) (See’2yS) (60569) (008"109) (AR (1ve118) (cec'esl)
(gzs'19s'e) ¢ (yvover'y) $  €ss'96L'v ¢ (06C'evl'p)$  (2pL'6S8) $ (0L0es0'L) $  (188ZL0'L)8
0102 6002 8002 1002 8002 5002 ¥002

(Buunoode Jo siseq |enidaoe)

SIB3A |BOSI UBASSG ISk
s1assy 19N ul sabueyn

e1B1029 ‘abpugy203g jo A1

juswularot Aewud |gj0 ]
saljAloe adAl-ssauisng
SBIIANOE [BJUBWILIBAOD)
sj}assy 19N ui sebueyn

wawuiaAob Asewud )0
saialjoe adA-sssuisng (€10
sigsuel |
sjasse jejdeo Jo uoiisodsip uo (sso|) ulen
sBujuies JuswiisSany|
saiyaloe adAj-ssauisng
saniailoe [ejuawuianch ejo ]
sl9)suel }
SNO3UE|SISIN
sBulules Jusw)seau|
sjasse je}ided Jo uoiusodsip uo (sso|) uieo

saxe} 1Byi0
$oxe} [210/IS10H
saxe)} abeianaq oljoyod|y
$axe)} wniwa.d asueInsu)
|jeuonednodQ
ss|es uondo |eco]
as|youel
staibuelul

Soaxe |
'SIAIDR [BIUSWIUISACD
$}assy J9N ul sabuey JayjQ pue SBNUBADY |RIDUILD)

asuadxa Jau Juawwaroh Arewnd |Blo]

sannoe adAl-ssauisng
AlJOB [EJUBLIUIBACD
anuaaal/(esuadxa) 10N

95



8y¥'10Z'9 A 800°G6 8Y¥'68G Gov'0es 656061 08L'0€lL'E 6/9'vEE’) 96€£'G2 oloc
665'6..'G z08's ¥6£°96 671885 18C'9vS z20'¥0S 6.2°6S.'C o0l'eve’t 99g'ce 600¢
9¢€1'6.2'9 66071 199'G0} €22'v09 GSP'1SS 60€'996 6¥€'0€L'E €85'GGC’) LG Ly 800¢
L/¥'€0S'9 G90'9C Ge0'/2l .¥8'86G ¥GG '8¢5 Zy8'LLS oolL'see’e £€96'6ee’L Gov'9/ 002
196'0¢€'9 G617'0¢ 6EL'BLL 180'65S 962916 £60'65Y G85'06€'C 8Cr'9GL'L 061'66 900¢
69.'€vi'S G6.'GE 6..°L0) 861'€ZS IFARN1% z68'L0Y : Gy8'v98'C 126116 998'v01 G00¢
z87'/6L's  $ /8l'ee $ Loe6eL $ 0CELES S vl98SY S /1T8LvE ¢ 826'v.G6C¢ 8C9GLOL $ Zi¥OOL $ t0OC
|ejol xe] J8Yi10 xe| xe| xe| xXe| Xe] sajeS  Xe] asiyoueld xXe| Jea
|o10N/I930H abelanag wnjwald  jeuonednadp a|qibueju| |esasiy

J1|0YO02]Y  @dueinsuyj

(Bunnunosae jo siseq |[eniooe)
Sied ) |e9SI{ UDASS Ise]
22.n0g Aq SaNUDAY XB] S3IANOY |BJUSWUIIACD
eibioag ‘abpuqgyo0ls jo Ao

96



‘pun4 juswdojoAspay UBGIN Y} Ul SBNSS| puoq SNUSASI
2y} Jo JINsaJ 8Y} S 900Z PUB GOOZ Ul 8oUBjeq punj PaAISSA. Ul 9SEIOUI |BRUBISNS 8Y |
EIN

0S6G6LCL $ 0/226L°€L$ 900€.9'€SC$ 68€.68'€c $ €2E/PEIZS 9/6'LEL'GLS  6096ELLS veYLEYS$  Lzvevly S  0Z06LLY $
€868, & G26868G $ //69Z66 $ ¥Gr8961L$ 68L/vE9LS €2G9GeL $  98VOVEL S  cloV80'L $  ve6wLL $ G/E'8S §  SPpunj|ejuswiusancb ayo (e eloL
8¥o'Cly LL1L'€SS L0¥'2LS G6S'LEL (1ze'ee) 826'8€C 0z9'9cey 168991 60.°0S spuny josfoud |eyde)
186 o0zr'y 1€9'8 y68'Y 00L'S - - - - spuny enuanai (e1adg
‘Ul papodal ‘panissalun
96L'G/E'E $ VEELVE'S $  6E6'SPL8 $  G96'LES'LL $  OLP'Gle9l$  GBSZLL'L $ 69196 ¢ zZeL'8Y9 § 1608 $ 999, $ panissay
spuny [ejuswuIan0b 1ayjo |1y
6LL'90r'8 $ GPE'ER8. $  6209PEWL $  GE6'888°LL $  YEL'0000LS  €S¥'GLLL $  €ZL'66E9$  Z89°9EE'V S EEYWI6'E$  GYO0CLY § puny [esauab |ejo |
062'8LE'g GE8'008'L 295s'6vZ' vl zis'ezl' )L ¥98'€98'6 08¥'059°L €2.'682'9 v.9'0vZ' Yy €0.°106°¢ G¥8'L99'y paasssaiun
698°/8 $ 0156 $ L9¥'96 $ €9€65L $ o0L2'9el ¢ €6'veL  $ $ 80096 $ o0cLT. $ 008¢E 8 panIossy
pun4 |BJoudo)
o0loz 002 8002 2002 9002 6002 002 £00¢ 200¢ 1002
sled ) [easid

(BuUNOJ92® JO SiISBq |ENIOJE paipow)
siea )\ [ROSi4 U9] jseT]
SPUN4 |BJUBWILIIBAOS) JO Sdduejeg pung

e1610a9 ‘abpLgx203s Jo ANg

97



*18JUB0) Y} JO UONONNSUOD 8y} 8oueuy djay o} pun4
19JUS0) S2UBIBJUOY) SISPUBIA BB\ BU} O} SI9SUEI) 818M Z00Z PUB L00Z Ui Slajsues juesyiubis ayy ()

:8J0N

%2 6l %619 %L1 %9'Gl %L'9 %00 %00 %00 %00 %00 sainyipusdxa [epded
-uou Jo uadiad e se 82IASs 198
(oze'oes'1) § (ocL088°6) $ (€8€'¥8L) $ (vE6'68¥2) $ LPEGILZLL$ 19¢2682 $ GLi'glee $ €191221 $ (bzo'0oco) $ (Z16'620°L) $ seoue|eq puny ut sbueyo JoN
(801 '¥22) 018°cez 8v9'v69'9 (026'015) 16E'0VZ'6 616'169'8 ($8L'L6€) (8L¥'GEL) (115662'2) (992'068'2) (sesn) se0In0s BuloUBUY JBUIO [eJ0L
- - - - 005‘Ley - - - - - SjuSWSSINqWIDY
- - 2e9'vie 000°'L6¥ $80°'8 - - - - - sjosse |ejideo jo ajes
(801'¥22) (821'901'¢) (L£2'219) (€62°112°1) (£61'650°1) (180'856) (¥8L'L8¢€) (8L¥'s€L) (116'662'2) (992'058'2) sigjsuel]
- 886'6£€'C £G2'L60°L €12'v02 000'G6.'6 000°059'6 - - - - SONSS| Jqop WOJ) SPasoold
- - - - 000'G. - - - - - spaavosd Juswapes
(sasn) saaunos Bujoueuyy 18Y310
(zLzzie’) (ovs'vLL'ol)  (1£0'628'9) (r1¥'626°L) 956'7.6'L (255'662°)) 668'6.9'C 160200 18¥'699'1L $5€'028') sainypuadxa
(Japun) JBAO SBNUSA3I JO SSBIXT
¥vE'6,9'01 006'9€2'81 189'GEL ') 29L°€¥L'0L G86'208'8 806'€08'6 829'G0¥'S 9v6'926'y vEL'ObY'S 9/8°058°C saJnypuadxa [ejo

6£5°85. £Th'e8s 1€1°126 6L1°LGL 925'8€¢ - - - - - 150.18U}

000'GGy $10°02LL'9 - - - - - - - - |ediound

- - - - 968'812 GGG'pbEL - - - - JuNnoosip enss! [eulbuQ
82IAI8S 108(]
¥80'€LE'Y LiP'OP6'S ¥8€'966'¢cL GGE'G68'G 860°LEC'Y G0.'688'G 828'981'2 1€6°1€0°C 2L5'12L 89p'Z0¥ Aepno [eyde)
G01'29 VA A €2€'09 6EY'GO G06°'LY - - - - - uoinowoid pue wsuno .
PE9'LS 2L1'99 110'88 2vL'08 v16'8G £80'¢ ¥i6'2 - - - 1USWISDI04UB BPOD
GG8'LL 258'61 GG0'9l 166'2S 265'9¢ £50'vS - - - - JswdojaAspal uegin
- - - - - 6509 11€'8 - - 12¥'601 Aseiqn
00Z'681 £88°4112 180'LG1 Z89'o%1 1£1'G9L 81.'991 106°LY1L 265'9¢€1 116'88 12¥'604 uoNesI081 pue syied
- - - - - - - - - - uoneHues
016'€2L'L 0L¥'eel'L £85'6%9'1 0Z1'99%°L vL9'6EG L 820'625°L 620°L0EL Ly6'bEL’L v10'286 Y116 sjeasis pue skemybiy
18921y 6EY'L0Z 0v6'9ZY Sov'vLL 220'0¢1 G09'gL 1L 22119 GOg'LLL [Nz 0.6'GL Ayayges otjand
€11'685 165 L9Y 6.6'212 806'9.¢ 826'L1Y 666'L¥E 190'G¥¢ eLY'L1E 292'v9¢ 0€2°292 1Noo [edidiuniy
102'9¢6'1 86€'G.8'l Z8L°LY9') Lv6'L2L°) £€2'L28°L £01'p95°1 9€4'26¢'L 8LL'V6L L 960'gbL L 619'v.6 JuswiuIAA0b |e1euag
sainjipuadxy
Z€1'L0€'6 ¥GE'22L'8 059°958'L | 8YE'¥9.L'8 1¥6'282°01 96€'70G'8 125°180°8 1£0'7€6'9 129'GL1'S 0€Z'1L9'Y SaNUBASI {BJ0 |
GIS'8L1 9z.°18 £28'Lee 051°c9 19€'ve 609'2¢ 1£5'62 8Ly LY 0£8°02 £88'GZ Snoaue||sosIy
898'91 106'09¢ 1€€'925 $80°280'L 116066 0Z¥'SLL Lip'26 GlLS'€L 686°L6 12£'302 sbuluies Juswisanuj
96Y'GLL 980'9v. G1G'v86 11G'8¥L 111208 181'695 128'LES 62Y'8LY L15°819 20€'€SS S8IN}I80} puE saul4
Lyl vov'y 616°C 685'G 6ve'y 9¢L'S 688'C 168'y L¥8'E o' So01SS 10} sableyd
Z15'008°) 955°010'L €.8'896°¢ 192'c1z £65°998°Z 06L'€¥L'C 816'€0'C 1G2'L¥8'L G801 2L G9Z'LL [eluawiuionobisiul
yy9'cLl 650'65 ) 9€2'591 120'%G1 £80'vS1 162'cel 0L0'vS1 08161 66e'eet zLz'ozs spunad pue sesusol]
0092129 $ 229'¢9L'G $ LP6'69Z'9 $ 9G9°/6V'9 $  19G'0€€'9 $ 69L'CHPY'G $  18ZL6L'G $  18E6EL'Y $  v66'6LL'Y $  6ESEVLE § soxe|
SONUBADY

0102 6002 800¢ 2002 9002 5002 002 £002 2002 1002
SIedA |edsid

spun4

(Bunnunoooe jo siseq |enidode payipow)
sSiea\ |edsiq uaj jse
[EJUSWIUIGAOS JO Saduejeg pund ul sabuey)
eifi029 ‘abpugy203s Jo Ao

98



'$9SS2UISN( |BIDJSWWOD
pue uonendod yjoq ul ywmosb Jueoyiubis ay) 0} anp pasesoul saey
22IN0S 9NUBA3I Xe) J3y}o Jsow yum Buoje senuanal xe] as() pue sajes

:9JON
0092129 YAZATA" S0P'0€S 299'88y 6.9'vEE’L ogL'oel’e 968'209 2 0l0c
2T9'e9L's zez'oel 18Z'9vS 220'v0s 90L'eve’L 6.2'6SL'C 20L'v.S - 600¢
L¥6'692'9 L12°291 GS¥'1GG £60°'099 €8G'GSZ'L 6PE0EL'E 062'509 - 800¢
959'26¥°9 609'€ze ¥GG'8€S £¥8°LLS €96'geT’L 00L'6eE'e L¥8'86S 1244 £00¢
L9G'0€€9 2L0'6vC 962916 €60'65Y 82h'9GL L G8S'06€E'E 180°6GG 4] 900¢
69.L'€¥¥'S oLv'sve €LY'E6Y z68°'L0¥ 126°L16 G¥8'v98'C 861°€CS 0¢ G00¢
L8Z'L61°G G98°29¢ v.9°8SY YR WAZS 829'GL0°L 826'v.G'C 02Ze'L€S 6¢€ $00¢
L8e'6EE Y €65°091 LeT'eTy 0¥6°G6¢ TL0'LL9 zLi'gae’e 88E'VLS 6€ €00¢
v66'6LL'Y LLZ'SEL 669'26€ L¥9'592 €EY'8E9 €LL'eLL'e 828'¢€LS 60y €00¢
BEG'EVL'E eeeiiel 106°25¢€ leL'vee ASRARS) G90'e86°L GrL'eey A% 100¢
fejol xe] Jayjo wnjwa.id uonednaosQ asiyosuel soxe] sojes obelonag Jeuosiad JedA |edsiq
aoueInsu| ssauisng Joyooly pue |eay

(Bununoooe jo siseq [entdoe palyipow)

siea A |edsiq ua] jse

82uno0g Ag S9NUAAdY XE| |EJUSWIUIDAOL) |BISUSD)
eib1099 ‘abpuLqgxa0ls jo 3o

99



100

Jauoissiwwo) xe] Ajunon) AlusH :82IN0g
3SNjeA jenjoy pajewys3 JO %0 Je pajendjed sl anje/A Passassy (1)

:S8JON
000 p0S'Shi'6lL (9z1'922'1LE) 08¢'619°'Le 0102802 012'696'082 oLoc
000 2ce'0r9'068 (926'¥80°1L€) 086'8¥.'92 €29'1z2'C S9'¥6.'268 6002
000 198'66.'G06 (ger'LyL'8e) 06%°1L6%'Ge 0oL'svl’L 9¢0'10.'916 8002
000 L1€699'0€8 (8e¥'ecT’ L2) 001°279'/2 0r0°'9e6°lL 609'882'828 1002
000 2e8'v06'86/ (266'6£6'9) 069'v9¢'ve 096'G98'L PeESPILT YL 9002
000 691'95.'00.L (2e9'v99'8) 0.5'1€8'02 0¥0'€90'2 161'925'989 G002
000 696'082'629 (162'9£9'2) ov¥'epo’'oe 082°/L9°L 005'962'GL9 ¥002
000 $G6'9¥5°'€GS (5z0'9/8'2) 0¥S°169'81 009'068°1L 6€8'026°0¥S €002
000 0S8'cy6'c0y (Er¥'LLE0P) 00€°182'G1 009'996'1 €6€°200°L2Y 2002
000 £6h'ezr'08e (sv¥'150'6) ory'129'LL 0v9°'286°L 018'668'G.¢E 100¢C
ajey (1) anjep suopndwaxgy 3I91YdA I0J0N awoH 9JIqo fuadoug lea) xeJl

xe] 393l passassy |ejoL |euosiad pue [eay
lejol
(palipneun)

sieo) [eosi4 uaj i3se
Auadoud ajgexe] Jo anjep passassy
eib1099 ‘@bpLay203s jo 1D



Jauoissiwwo) xe | Ajuno) AiusH :82.n0g

suoidwaxa ss9| ‘uolen|ea passasse 000’ L$ Jod ate sejel xey iy (L)

S9JON

€9'8¢ §2°0 00'L 002 €9'¢ 0002 SLLL 0102
0L 520 00'L 002 90'c 0002 1201 6002
0. 520 00'L 002 90'e 0002 1201 8002
1G'L€ §2'0 00'L 002 90°€ 0002 0z'LL 1002
1G'2€ SZ'0 00'L 00T 90'e 0002 0Z'L1 9002
56'9€ 520 00'L 00 90'c ov'6lL V2Ll 5002
S'9e 520 00'L 002 90'c 06'8L vZLL ¥002
S'9e 20 00'L 002 90'¢ 06'84 A €002
¥0'GE 520 00’1 00T 90'¢ S9'L1 8011 2002
SLPE 520 00’1 002 90'c SLLL 6211 1002

leso) aje)s leyidson 1918 puog |00ydS OB |00Yds  Aunod [3TE) slea)\

[eosid/xe]

sjuswuIanog buiddeanQ pue jaaiqg

(1) sieap |easiq4 uaj ise

sajey xe] Auadouad

e161099 ‘aBplgxo03s o A3

101



SJUSUISSISSE 2IYDA J0J0W dpNnoul Jou saoq "Auadoid jeuostad pue jeal Ajluo sapn|ou| @)

3}oeq||ol Xe} sajes Jaye ajel abe|w oN (1)
:SSJON
V/N - VIN - - 0102
V/IN - V/N - - 600¢
V/IN - VIN - - 800¢
V/IN - VIN - - 2002
V/N - V/IN - - 9002
V/IN - VIN - - §002
V/N - VIN - - ¥002C
V/N - /N - - £00¢
VY/N - VIN - - 200¢
V/N - VIN - - 100¢
Ana jo abejuasiag junowy SIea Ana7 Jo abejuaaiag junowy (z)(1) Ana xel |BJOL 1e9A xej|

ajeQ 0} SUORD3||0D [BI01

juanbasqng
uj suonv9|en

AnoT
8y} jo Jes ) [eosid 9y} UiLlim pajoa|joo

siea) |edsid ua] iseT
SUO0}09]|0D pPuUk SaiAaT] xe} Auadold
e1bi039 ‘abpugyo0ls jo A1

102



Jauoissiwwo) xe] Ajuno AlusH :82.noS

:9JON
%0 71 80 ¢ %2 L1 GLL'28 ¢ slejo.
%80 oL 9ve'Z yos Arejuswa|g abpLgx00)S
%01 6 gclL'e doid uosuaysian) - oowey
%Ll 8 Zvr'e 271 ‘Ajesy ebleo
%E’L L 0Zl'y S|eLsje|N ueojnp
%9’} S Z66't D71 * 9bpugxo0ls
%EC ¢ vv6'9 dJoD) s80IAI8S ISNIUNg
%¥'C I4 6.¢'L soluadold ules|iy
L 689'/ sjuswyedy abe|jiA poomises
%80 o] €0L'9 D717 11 96pLgNO0IS JO YA
%80 6 6LY'9 0771 se|be3 piopaiepy
- %60 8 699'9 D717 3N 96pLgH00IS SO
%60 L gog's 071 Buipue ss|be3 je s3r
%860 9 88¢'/ Jsideq js414 Buipue ssjbeq
%L1 S £G6/'8 D717 48umQ Ajlunwwiod 4S9
%L L 14 z68'8 sjuswpedy s8A| 1S
%Z L € 0Zy'6 BJUB[}Y dSd Haouod
%02 14 ¥62'9 %9'L 14 09621 [e}e ‘dioD pueT AiusH IsspA
%G| 9 009't $ %L1 L 98s'cl ¢ ssauisng 1s3 |eay Ue\-[eA
anjeA poassassy yuey anjep an|eA passassy nuey anjeA 1afedxe |
a|qexe] [ejol possassy ajgexe] |ejol passassy
Jo affejuaniad ajqexe] Jo abejuostad ajgexe|
1002 0102

(spuesnoy) ui passaidxs syunowe)
oby siea) auUIN pue .Ieaj jualing
si19hedxe] Auadouad jediduuyg

eibioag ‘abplgxo0ls Jo A0

103



"S)EJ JOMBS BU)) SE SLIES BU) Si il JSJEM ‘8’1 '80IAI8S UOBS 10} 8le Sajey (1) @10N

JEIS DABJSIUIUPY Jomag g JajBAA 8BpuUMO0lS 4O AND (80inog

Gg'8 $ ¥e€'9 $ vy ¢ 009 $ 0L0C
vi'8 $ 09 $ vee ¢ 009 $ 600¢C
SL'L $ GL'G $ gle 3 oor $ 800¢
€9'v 12504 9Y 200¢

L'y ey vy 900¢

ocvy €6°¢ €Ty §00¢

00'v pl'e €0’y ¥00¢C

I8¢ 95 ¥8'€ €00¢

£€9'¢ 6ee 99'¢ cooc

sh'e e 8v'E 100¢

SA0QY suojjes) suojes aseg IA0QY suojesy oSkeg 1IN
pue 0006 000’y Aluuop pue 000zt Ajupuopy 1easiy

100'6 0} 100y 90 000zt 01 000°€

(1) S3LvY 4IMIS % HILYM

Siea ) [B2SI4 Ud] 1se
sajey [eljUIPISY JOMAG pueR JI2)JBpR
eibioag ‘abplLgy303g Jo ANo

104



JEIS SABASIUILPY Jamag B Jal1ep aBpugyo0ls 10 AlID (80in0g

LL0'9vE 6.¥°'ZL6 $ 000°€06'SS 099'816°9G1 gezely ¢ cTTL/e6 ¢ 000°TLLLS 099'G8L'¥S1L oLoz
Gev'Lee 88¥'L/8 $ 000689'¢S 000°GLL'LSL GgGo'60r ¢ 0SEVE6 $  00T'9¥6'0S 000'65¥'CS1L 6002
¥99°LGE 80c9le ¢ GEL'ElEL9 166'GEQ'VOL 9zG'8ey $ GSZ'906  $  002'G88'9S 166°08EL91L 8002
€eq'0ve 889'v/9 $ 0006£T'/8 090'G6E 'GPl L0y, ¢ GSL'L8L ¢ 000°109'6L 026°2€9'¢9l 200¢
€09'85¢ 19€°799 ¢ 000'928'99 00L'¢8€'6EL 6.6'Lb€ ¢ €€0°2.L $ 000°€vL'LL 008'GLL L LL 9002
6€8°21¢ 8¥1'8€9 ¢ 00Z'00v'6Y 001'G26°LS1 LLL'YYT ¢ go8'8el $ 00.20L'1S 00€°16L°0L1 S002
vye'eze Ly8'v8G $ 666°.61°6G L9Z'LL6'GPL 088'Z¥c ¢ S6V'LL9 $ 00SLL6°09 968°LL6'V91 ¥00¢
orZ'e6l 6Lgc'ors ¢ 0ZZ'T0S°ZS gg9'eviest 8/€'ccc ¢ 856029 ¢ 012'992'LS GLY'29L°091 £00¢
C0E'961 L0265 $ GLE'L8L9S GZE'06G'6.1 2G5'90c ¢ 15689 $ 016'8EL'8S GLY'L1G'891 200¢

By jejjuapisay JL8yl0 leuaplisay 8410 [euapisay 19410 leuspisay Jea )\

anuanay awInjoA anuaAay awn|oA
Jamog 491epp

slea A QuUIN 1seT

AoBajen 1awo)sng Ag SONUDAIY J19MIS pue J9JBAA JO Alewiwing
eibioa9 ‘abpligy203s Jo AN

105



‘Auno) AusH 10} Po1os|j0d soxe| sajeg uondQ (8207 aYl 4O %E0 Ll SeAeal A syl (€)

‘Run ayy Aq peoe)|0o saxe} sajes uo paseq paieinoen (2)

%00°L %00 %001 %001 %00°L
%00'L %00t %001 %00°L %001
%00°L %00y %001 %00’} %001
%00 L %00y %001 %00°L %001
%00 %00t %001 %001 %001
%00°L %00V %001 %00°L %00}
%00°L %00 %00°1L %001 %00}
%00'L %00V %001 %00°1L %00°L
%00'L %00V %00'L %00°L %00°L
%00°L %00'v %001 %00°L %00°L
|elol ajels wolsAg fAuno) Auno)n
looysg 1 fuo 1 fu9o (¢)
asodind |eadg uondo
jeso

Sied ) [eoSI4 Ud] 1seT

'9|gexe] Jou aie $a0IALes pue sbnup uonduosald (1)

96+'251'66.°C
900'885'G05'C
099'/¥6°6£8°C
¥82'6G.°£20°C
zzs'yeL'el0e
088°'€0Z'0€S'C
\we'LL5'652'T
/9L°009°L¥0°C
80C'99F'vi6'L
282'9/9v9L'L

FF AR DR NN N D

fAuno)
A1uaH ayy ulypm
so9jeg ajqexe|

(2) (1)

sjuawiuIanon Buiddepanp pue joaliq
S9jeg 9|(exe] pue sajey xe| sajesg

eibioan ‘abpliqy203s jo A31D

‘SOION

oloc
6002
800¢
£00¢C
900¢
G002
¥00¢
€00¢
200¢
100C

slea) |edsid

106



"AiD auy Joy eyep uoieindod 10} 0| abed 88s ()

"SJUSWIS)E)S [BIDUBUL JUSLIND BY) JO § SJON Ul punoy ag ueo jgap Bulpuelsino sAiD auy buipiebal sjieyeq (1)

VLA 60269 0sezrL'LL 06€°206°) - 000's€C'9l
%LE'E ¥9'86/ 000°069°9} - - 000°'069'9}
%SY'v L21S0°L €.9'/€l'eT 8¥9°20L'C 000°0L€ Geo‘ozl'oz
%99°¢ LLLpO'L G1€'9€0'cT zoleen’e 000'6S€ €.2'6¥9'61
%6.L°€ €9'650°) €Le'sLl'ee gle'eee’e 000'S6E 000'G¥¥'61
%EL'T LLGLL ¥2Z'06L'EL ¥22'0£9'e 000°0L¥ 000'059'6
%€6°0 (0] 9 474 GTL'SLE'Y GZ/'G06'€ 000'0L¥ -
%011 01¢6e 8G9°LL9'Y 859991 'y 000°G0S -
%SLL 12°0L€ ZL9'199'y ZL9'0SL'y 000605 -
%EY’L L1°G6€E ¥16'8€6'Y Y16'c0v'y 000°'GES -

awoou| (z) enden JUBWILIBA0D) S3)ON spuog spuog
Jeuosiad jo 19d Aewnd v439 anuanay anuaAdy
abejuaoiad lejol 19Mag/ 19)e juswdojarapay

(1) samanoy adA| ssauisng (1) senianoy
|EJUBWIUIBA0D)

slea, [edsi4 ua] jse

ad£] Aq 1qaq BuipuelsinQ jo oney
e1b1099 ‘aBpugx203s Jo A)D

0i0¢
600¢
800¢
£00¢
9002
S00¢
¥00¢
€00¢
¢00¢
L00C

'S8JON

ICEXN
[eosi4

107



‘anjea Auadolid passesse |ejo} Jo
weoled g pesIXe Jou pinoys jaap uonebiqo jelauab Buipueisino s,abpug¥o0ls ‘me| slelS Ag (2)

“uoneyIwI| 1gap S} 0} 103lans si eyl 1gep uonebyqo jessust ou sey A ayy (1)

‘3JON
0SSv¥6'/. $ CEOV90'68 $ 986'6/506 $  L€6'990€8 $ €8V°058°S. $ Z19GJ00.L $ /608c6CO $ GBOPSESS $§ GBEWBE OV $  GPETYBOE § uibsew 1qap |ebe

. . . - , - - - - - Hwi 0} 8jqeoydde Jqap Jou jejo L
0SS'v¥6'Z. $  TEO'V90'68 $  986'6.5°06 $  L€6'990'c8 $  €8V'068'S. ¢  /19'G/0°0L $  L60'826'C9 $ GBOVGE'SS $  GOE'V6EOy $  GYETYB'0E $  SNIEA PassSassy O %0l Wi igsq

v0S'SYY'6L. $

0102

zzZE'0v9'068 $

6002

198'66.'506 $

8002

11£'699'0£8 $

4002

Ze8'¥06'86. %  69L'9G.'00L$  696'082629%  PG6'OPS'ESS S 0G8'CHE'EOVS  €SP'ETYB0ES uonen|eA pessassy pajewixoiddy

9002 00¢ 002 €002 002 1002

sleaj |eosid

SJB9\ |edSId uaj Ise
uoneunioju] wibiey 1qaq [eba

elbioag ‘abpuqy 203 jo ANo

108



GOS0'0 BEG'85.
¥000°0 €Tr'ess
96L€0 LEL'LT6
88590 611252
¥8¥S0 000°0€E

000°GSY
€100229

8589
zee'e
Zye'o6e
08.'861
296'081

9beI9A0) }Salslu|

ledidulld S3NU3AdY

9DIAIBS 143Q

$5019

spuog anuaAay Juswudojarapay

‘sasuadxa uonezijowe Jo ‘uoijeloaldap ‘}saisiul apnjdul Jou op sasuadxa
BuneradO ‘sjuswale)s [BIoUBUY JUSLIND BU) 0} 6 SJON Ul punoy aq ueo 1gap Buipueisino s An0 ay) Buipsebal sjielaq

‘6007 BuLINp s8NSsSI puUog anuaAsy
Jameg pue Jsjepn Buiutewsas sy Jo (B pue senssi puog snuaaey juswdoerspay snolea predaid A1) syl

V2L 06.'8¢ 000'0LE €/0'6.G 2/8'02LC 056'669°C
96'8 0S.'Z1L 000'G¥ 002'29S PrL'eLL'e Pr6'619'C
¢C9 06,61 000°0v BYS°L2E 868'0L0°C Lyy'z8e'e
19¢ 0s.'le 000°'0¥ 9zl Lol 1£1'886'L €08'6v)'C
59 005'ce 000'Ge £G.'28¢ 258'CL6'L 609'G62'C
lC'9 0S¢'Se 000'GE 168'€LE 821'G09'} 610'6€0'C
GG'9 06.'9¢ 000°'0¢ 888'L/¢ geg'Lov'l €TL'eLL'L
142> 05¢'8C 000'0¢ 162902 168'L8Y'L Zrl'e89’l
6L°. 005'6¢ 000'GC 126'16E 919'c9z’t VG759l

SBPEIOACH  J5010jU]| fedioulld 3JJiIAI9S 390 Sosuadxg  SonuoAdy
931A198 1930 10} a|qejieAy (1) ssol9

anudAdY JoN

siea A |eosid us] jse

SPUOE dNUIADY JOMIS PUE JJJBAA

abeianon anuanay-pabpald
e|bioan ‘@bpLy203S Jo AND

(2)

‘910N

0L0¢
600¢
800¢
£00¢
900¢

~ N W0

)N
|edsid

109



snNsua)

jwwo? |euoibay ejuepy
saoe|d Jsag s,builiads
uoneanp3 jo pseog Alunod AluaH

uot

%y 0L (WA v'ce 08¢’z 089°260°8YS 9€9'62 *
%€ 0l Lyb'T Z've 625°'C 000°8€9'G6Y 00022
%16 1192 e €10'v2 869°'602'02S 999°'L2
%Ly eLY'e e 82¥'62 y8Y L¥8'629 €ov'le
%S'v 9ze'y y'ee 2€6'L2 005°2L0°L1L9 G/8°'le
%16 80Z'¥ y'ee 6£2'92 899'€01' 05 zLz'6l
%0 80L'¥ 7'ee 919z P0P'€29'89¥% 116°L1
%Ev LLE'Y r'ee 891'92 yel'zoe'eey €66°Gl
%6'€ 8cC'y y'ee 866'0Z 000°0LE'v0¥ 000°GL
%6°C 08L'¥ y'ee y0L'LT 000'00€°9¥E 0052l
ajey juswijioiugy  aby ueipay awoou| awoou| uonendog
juawhojdwaufn |o0yoss epden Jad |euosiad

(2)

(1)

@

(2)

SIedA |B9SI4 Ud] jse
sa13s1eIS d1Wou093 pue sydesbowaq

e1B10a9) ‘abpLOY20)S J0 AHD

(€)

)
(2)
(1)

:$89IN0g

0i0e
6002
800¢
2002
900¢
500¢
002
€002
2002
1002

ITETN

{easiy

110



90S°¢ 6.6°1
8 GL VIN VIN
8 g8 VIN VIN
oL 19 0l 99
L L0L 6 6.
VIN V/IN 8 €6
9 0zl L 00l
[4 G.9 9 S0l
€ 22 g 891
14 661 14 861
S P8l € 80¢
VIN VIN [ YX44
I €Ll l G.S
Nuey saakojdwy Nuey saakojdwizg
900¢ 010z

oBy sieaj Ino4 pue Jeaj juaung
siofojdwg jediounyg
e1bioag ‘abpLg)203s Jo AN

4EIS SAnLSIUILIPY SBPUGHO0IS 40 AD :901n08

‘a|gejIeAR JOU Si AjiD) 3y} apisut JuawAojdwa ol (2)

‘sonsnels JuswAojdws Joy s|qejieae Jeah isiiy 8yl st 900z (1)

:8J0N

s9alojdwz €30

yueg BINOYOBAA
abpiy uspleg

abpugxo01s o AiD

Jjueg sjels Jsii4 syt

agnjp Aiuno) Buipue se|beg

2.10]S Juswyeda( s,|yoy

sniiung

VSN Mepspuelg

AD 8y} uiypm sjooyos Aiunos Alusy
sleyJe Jadng xiand

d171 J00WAS

Jajusosadng LE-[BA

FEYIITE]

111



Jawpedaq soueuUl{ ;92IN0S

"3AOQE PapN|dUIl JOU ‘smaid Buino sseub 1o) sa01nas [auuosiad sasn aBpLayo0)s 4o AiD 8yl

"®AOQE 9U) Ul pepn|oui Jou ale s|einiyo pajuiodde pue pejos|3

‘810N
99 ¥9 S9 19 19 29 12°] 6t %14 44 |elol
9 9 9 9 9 S 14 14 € € I8l A
€ € € 14 14 € - - - - 18)eMWI0IS
6 6 6 6 8 L VA L g ] omeg
ol 0l pL (¥4 el vl 6l Sl Ll 014 uonejues
Sl Gl 145 Li Ll 14 4% Ll 0l g SHIOA Olland
€ € € I € € l L b Z syied
14 14 14 14 14 14 € € € - J8jua) |duaIBUOD
l b l L 3 Z - - - - juswadiojuy apod
g 14 Z b Z 4 4 I4 Z Z unog |ediouniy

6 VA L L L 9 14 14 Z € uonessiuipy

2 4 4 4 4 4 4 Z Z Z AANd9X]
JuswiLIaA0b |ejousn)

0i0e 6002 8002 1002 9002 G002 002 €002 2002 1002 uonoung

slea) [eosi4 ud] jseq

uonoun4 Aq seskojdwz Juswuianos) Al Juajeainby awiy-|iny
eibioag ‘abplgyo03s Jo Ao

112



"JelS eagelsIiuwpY abplg00Is Jo AND

192IN0g

‘900z 0} Joud s|ge|ieAR JOU B1e Bjep JS)EMULIOLS PUE JUSWSOIONT 9poD

:S9J0N
001 oy 144 66 Ge VIN VIN VIN VIN syure|dwod
9.2 92¢ 9z¢ (344 (44" VIN VIN VN VIN suopoadsu|
LST'vYY GEB'YEY GE6'vEY G20°'zzy 6v€'90Y VIN Y/IN VIN VIN sadid Jo 1994 Jo Jaquinu |ejo |
€51 0z0'c 0z0't GG6'e §08'¢ VIN Y/IN VIN Y/IN sadid jo Jaquinu [ejoL
181 291 291 124" 8el VIN VIN VIN VN payiuapi spuod |ejusiod
19}EMWIOIS
- - 0.'8¢ oozl 20¢C 00’y - - - Buneoo |ess ; Buiess xoriD
G8'0 oL’ - - e - 00'¢ - - Buioepnsai J9a1g
(sapN) s1eaas pue sAemybiy
9¥e [ANA 6t¢ PA*TA £9¢ 062 62¢ VIN VIN MON
80L°L 190°}L 8GL'L ¥0Z°1L G80°L €26 €68 eLL 169 anss| [euibuo
- penssi $asual| ssauisng
xe| [euonednooQ
¥86'VLL $ yas'izl $ 919'z6L $ v20°6¥C $ 6.£'2vZ $ 6€5°'661 ¢ ¥10'9LL $ 290261 $ 68€'v6 $ S4BLUOISND WO PAAIadal yseD
0L¥'€T 00Z'6l 6822 08lL've 000°GS 000'ee 000'62 00062 000°L1 SJO)SIA JO JaquinN
20e 6€l vee (WA 4 009 0o 0s¢ Gle gLl sjuangrsbuneaw Jo JequinN
19)U87) JoUBIB0D
g8l'sy  $ vie%2 ¢ 686zl ¢ 609701 $ L129%G § VIN VIN VIN VIN saul
gle (574 Ly9 968 XA 4 VIN V/IN VIN V/IN S9! L
1€2 199 1,66 gee'lL 289 V/N VIN VIN VIN sjuejdwo)
JUSWISDIOIT BP0
0L02 6002 8002 1002 9002 S002T 002 €002 2002 weiBold / uonoung

Slea A SUIN Ise

uonosung Aq siojesipuj Bupelsadp

eibioag ‘@6pugy203s Jo 1D

113



"HEIS eanelsILIWPY 86pUgYI0IS Jo A1)

:80In0g

AsONs'L A9NG'L A9DNG'L asns'L ASNG'L ASONS'} ASONG'L aones't ADNG'L Aons'L Auoeded usuneal)
aoes.  ADING89  AdOINGSS dOWSELY aOWLE9  ADWNSB9  AOINGES  ADWSLY dDOIN9SS  dOINE9S suojeb ur lJuswieas sbeiene Aleg
1 I I 3 L I I I ! I sjueld Juswieal) JO JaquInn
9le'z ¥62'C 2i2'e 8/2'2 S91'2 G91L'2 €102 896'L £96°L 6.6°L SUOIIOBULO0D SDIALBS
$66¢ ¥5°6¢ 8v'6¢ 0068 i8¢ zLle 00°6¢ 4> 9528 00°2¢ (sew) siemas Aieyues
abemag
000'006'L  000°006'L  000'006'}  000°006'L  000°006°L 000006 000006 000006 000'006 000006 suo|ieb ul fyoedes abeiols
GEL'064 0¥9'z8L LeL8vL £85'6€9 €8€'/28 £16'9€8 918'90. 1G8'808 168'808 129'62L suojjeb ul uogonpoud sbesene Ajeg
98y’ 16€'Z osr'e v’ o'z 0z’ ove'z 1512 0£1'2 81T SUO}OBUUOD BOIASS
9Lt 16V LG¥ 414 r4*14 0S¥ 01 0Lt 0L} 01 sjuelpAy a4
8¥'9p ot ¥ 8E' vt 8 by L8EY 00°EY 00°0% 00°8¢ 00°2¢ 00°.€ (sepw) sutew Jarepn
JRJEAN
€ € € € £ € e € ¢ € seuslowa)
! I L L L L I b l I Asesqn
! I I I L I I I I - $J8JU0 AJUnwwod
14 4 ¥ ¥ ¥ ¥ 4 14 ¥ 4 syted Jo JaquinN
2IN}INJ pue uoieaIody
1oL’ 608'9 ¥65°9 6G€'9 0619 GeL'S 98Y's 0zr's LIV'Y $96'e siawojsng
T4 [oT4 Lz 8z ¥z 44 0z €z Gl L S9IOIYDA UONDD|00 |lewS
S G 9 S G G S 14 £ € $HONJ} UoOa|I0D
L L L I b 3 b L 2 I suoe)s Jajysuest
uonejiuesg
8LL'L vLLL £66°L 065"} ¥0§'L y0S'L ¥0G4 viv'L viv'L viv'L sbipeals jo JequinN
2966 2966 0£'66 0266 91'26 G688 v8'18 ¥8°18 16°8L 899 (s3|lw) speos paned
eyl I clvl elpl elLbl 96'cl 85'¢l 8G°¢l gLel 98zl (se|iw sienbs) ease ywy A1D
SHIOM DIIGN4
0102 6002 8002 1002 9002 5002 002 £002 2002 100Z weiboud / uopoung
lea ) |Bosi4

slea ) ua] jsen

wieaboaduonoung Ag sonsnyels syessy [ejiden
eibioag ‘abplax203s jo 11D

114



	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30
	Page 31
	Page 32
	Page 33
	Page 34
	Page 35
	Page 36
	Page 37
	Page 38
	Page 39
	Page 40
	Page 41
	Page 42
	Page 43
	Page 44
	Page 45
	Page 46
	Page 47
	Page 48
	Page 49
	Page 50
	Page 51
	Page 52
	Page 53
	Page 54
	Page 55
	Page 56
	Page 57
	Page 58
	Page 59
	Page 60
	Page 61
	Page 62
	Page 63
	Page 64
	Page 65
	Page 66
	Page 67
	Page 68
	Page 69
	Page 70
	Page 71
	Page 72
	Page 73
	Page 74
	Page 75
	Page 76
	Page 77
	Page 78
	Page 79
	Page 80
	Page 81
	Page 82
	Page 83
	Page 84
	Page 85
	Page 86
	Page 87
	Page 88
	Page 89
	Page 90
	Page 91
	Page 92
	Page 93
	Page 94
	Page 95
	Page 96
	Page 97
	Page 98
	Page 99
	Page 100
	Page 101
	Page 102
	Page 103
	Page 104
	Page 105
	Page 106
	Page 107
	Page 108
	Page 109
	Page 110
	Page 111
	Page 112
	Page 113
	Page 114
	Page 115
	Page 116
	Page 117
	Page 118
	Page 119
	Page 120
	Page 121
	Page 122
	Page 123
	Page 124
	Page 125
	Page 126
	Page 127
	Page 128
	Page 129
	Page 130
	Page 131
	Page 132
	Page 133
	Page 134
	Page 135
	Page 136
	Page 137
	Page 138
	Page 139
	Page 140
	Page 141
	Page 142
	Page 143
	Page 144
	Page 145
	Page 146
	Page 147
	Page 148
	Page 149
	Page 150
	Page 151
	Page 152
	Page 153
	Page 154
	Page 155
	Page 156
	Page 157
	Page 158
	Page 159
	Page 160

